# MORAVIAN ARCHIVES

Inventory of the records of the

# **Church Registers**

ChReg

Paul Peucker 2004 (updated Dec. 2006)

## Table of contents

00. General	1
01. Arizona	2
01.01. Peoria	2
02. California	3
02.01. Banning	3
02.02. Covina	4
02.03. Martinez	5
03. Illinois	6
03.01. West Salem	6
03.02. Olney	8
04. Indiana	9
04.01. Indiananapolis	9
05. Iowa	10
05.01. Moravia	10
05.02. Blairstown	11
05.03. Harmony	12
05.04. Gracehill	13
06. Kansas	14
06.01. Osborne	14
07. Maryland	15
07.01. Carroll's Manor	15
07.02. Graceham	16
08. Michigan	17
08.01. Canton	17
08.02. Unionville	18
09. Minnesota	19
09.01. Bethany	19
09.02. Chaska	20
09.03. Elim & Hector	21
09.04. Henderson	22
09.05. Norton	23
09.06. Springfield	24
10. Missouri	25
10.01. Macedonia	25
10.02. Oakland	26
10.03. Spring Grove	27
10.04. Woodmount	28
11. New Jersey	29
11.01. Egg Harbor	29
11.02. Elizabeth	30
11.03. Hope	31
11.04. Oldman's Creek	32
11.05. Palmyra	33
11.06. Riverside	34
12. New York	35
12.01. Brooklyn	35
12.02. Camden Valley	36
12.03. New Hartford	37
12.04. Sichem	38
12.05. Staten Island	39
12.06. New York City	44
12.07. Utica	46
13. North Dakota	47

13.01. Bethel	47
13.02. Donnybrooke	48
13.03. Embden	49
14. Ohio	50
14.01. Beersheba	50
14.02. Dover	51
14.03. Gnadenhutten	53
14.04. New Philadelphia	54
14.05. Port Washington	56
14.06. Sharon	57
14.07. Uhrichsville	57
14.08. Warwick	59
15. Pennsylvania	60
15.01. Allemangel	60
15.02. Bethel	61
15.03. Bethlehem	62
15.04. Coopersburg	65
15.05. Coveville	66
15.06. Donegal (Mount Joy)	67
15.07. Emmaus	68
15.08. Heidelberg	
	69
15.09. Lancaster	70
15.10. Lebanon	71
15.11. Lititz	73
15.12. Muddy Creek	74
15.13. Nazareth	75
15.14. Newfoundland	76
15.15. Oley	77
15.16. Philadelphia	78
15.17. Reading	82
15.18. Roemerville	83
15.19. Schoeneck	84
15.20. Tulpehocken	86
15.21. Warwick	87
15.21. War Wick 15.22. Yardley	88
15.22. Tardley 15.23. York	
	89
16. Rhode Island	91
16.01. Newport	91
17. Wisconsin	92
17.01. Ephraim	92
17.02. Greenbay	93
17.03. Lake Mills	94
17.04. Sturgeon Bay	96
17.05. Town Portland	97
17.06. Veedum	98
17.07. Watertown	99
18. Canada	100
18.01. Toronto	100
19. Personal Registers	101
17. 1 CISOHAL NEGISLEIS	101

## 00. General

General church register of baptisms, performed by Moravian pastors throughout Pennsylvania, New York, New Jersey, Maryland. 1743 - 1766 Contents:

Baptisms 1743-1754, 1-74; 1755-1766, 81-145 (on loose leaves pasted into the register). [on p. 77-79, 147-155 notes are pasted in with that were already recorded in the first part of the volume).

The keeping of a general church register was resolved by the American synod in Bethlehem, Oct. 1748 (Verlass, no. 11). The text on the spine identifies this register as 'vol. II' of the general church register. What was considered to be vol. I of the general church register is in fact a parallel version of the Bethlehem register. 1 volume

in good condition, one page (13/14) loose.

Language: German (in a few cases English)

#### 01. Arizona

### 01.01. Peoria

168 Church register of the Morning Star Moravian Congregation at Peoria, Arizona, vol. 1.1982 - 2002

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of children 1983-2002, 2-6.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1982-2001, 41.

Confirmations 1982-1999, 61-62.

Receptions of members 1983-2002, 82-86.

Marriages 1982-1995, 121-125. (note: marriages 2002 in vol. 2).

Funerals 1983-1999, 161-167.

Removals and dismissals 1983-2002, 203-205.

1 volume

Language: English

169 Church register of the Morning Star Moravian Congregation at Peoria, Arizona, vol. 2.2003 - 2004

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of children 2003-2004, A1.

Marriages 2002, D1.

Funerals 2003, E1.

Receptions of new members 2003, F1.

Removals 2003-2004, G1.

1 volume

## 02. California

## 02.01. Banning

80 Church register of the Morongo Moravian Church at Banning, California. 1899 - 1956

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1899-1956, 1-6.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1899-1931, 49.

Confirmations 1899-1956, 57-62.

Receptions of new members 1900-1955, 77.

Marriages 1900-1927, 93-94.

Funerals 1899-1956, 113-117.

Removals and dismissals 1913, 1947, 153.

Ordination 1905, 161.

1 volume

page loose, binding broken

## 02.02. Covina

Church register of the Moravian congregation at Covina, California. 1959 - 1993

Content: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1959-1992, 1-23.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1959-1988, 97-100.

Confirmations 1959-1991, 110-118.

Receptions of new members 1958-1991, 146-167.

Marriages 1959-1988, 170-189.

Funerals 1959-1993, 205-229.

Removals and dismissals 1963-1992, 281-288.

Ordination 1987, 289.

For entries before 1959, see the service book.

1 volume

1898 - 1946

## 02.03. Martinez

78 Church register of the Moravian mission at Martinez, California.

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1899-1941, 1-9.

Baptisms of adults 1899-1916, 94-96.

Confirmations 1898-1928, 110-119.

Receptions of new members 1904-1934, 151.

Marriages 1900-1917, 178-180.

Funerals 1899-1946, 218-229.

Removals and dismissals 1928, 1946, 293.

1 volume

#### 03. Illinois

#### 03.01. West Salem

# Catalog and church register of the First or English Moravian Church at New or West Salem, Illinois, [vol. 0]. 1844 - 1857 (1867)

Contents:

Catalog 6-57.

Baptisms 1846-1857, 65-73.

Marriages 1848-1854, 74-76.

Funerals 1844-1867, 78-101.

Baptisms of adults 1848-1854, 116.

Lists of communicants s.d., [towards back of vol.]

Also contains maps of the sections of the Godsacre with the locations of the graves (p. 104-113 + last 2 pages of vol.).

With the separation of the congregation into an English and a German church in 1857, two new registers were started. Entries in this register, dating from 1857 or later, were transferred into the new register.

1 volume

Language: English

# 146 Catalog and church register of the First or English Moravian Church at West Salem, 1857 - 1873

Contents: (no page numbers)

Catalog.

Baptisms of infants 1857-1873.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1857-1873.

Marriages 1857-1873.

Funerals 1857-1873.

Lists of communicant members by choir 1869-1873 and s.d.

1 volume fragile

Language: English

# 147 Church register of the First or English Moravian Church at West Salem, Illinois, vol. II.1873 - 1915

Contents: Alphabetical index. Baptisms of infants 1873-1912, 1-20.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1874-1915, 109-116.

Confirmations 1874-1913, 117-132, 80-81 (note: pp. 80-81 are inserted after p. 132).

Receptions of new members 1873-1894, 133-140; 1894-1915, 60-65.

Marriages 1873-1915, 141-161.

Funerals 1873-1914, 173-230.

Removals and dismissals 1873-1911, 237-244.

Ordinations 1894, 1915, 249.

Both Moravian churches in West Salem, the English and the German church, joined in 1915. From then on, the official acts of the English church were recorded in the register of the (former) German church.

1 volume

Language: English

# Catalog and church register of the Second or German Moravian congregation at West Salem, Illinois, vol. I. 1849 - 1889

#### Contents:

Catalog according to choirs 1-106.

Baptisms of infants 1849-1871, 109-125; 1871-1889, 164-193.

Baptisms of adults 1854, 127.

Marriages 1850-1889, 133-140.

Funerals 1849-1878, 147-163; 1878-1889, 220-227.

Cannot be handled!

1 volume

pages brittle and loose; binding broken

Language: German

# 144 Church register of the Second or German Moravian congregation, after 1915 the (joint) Moravian Church at West Salem, Illinois, vol. II. 1889 - 1936

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1889-1936, 1-57.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1910-1936, 121-129.

Confirmations 1890-1935, 137-160.

Receptions of new members 1892-1896, 1908-1936, 163-176.

Marriages 1890-1936, 177-209.

Funerals 1889-1924, 217-284; 1924-1936, 75-107.

Removals and dismissals 1894-1898, 285.

List of communicants members 1910, 305-307.

1 volume

pages loose, binding broken

Language: German until 1909; English

### 145 Church register of the (joint) Moravian Church at West Salem, Illinois, vol. III.1937 - 1965

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1937-1965, 1-29.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1939-1965, 97-101.

Confirmations 1939-1965, 109-121.

Receptions of new members 1938-1965, 145-152.

Marriages 1938-1965, 169-184.

Funerals 1937-1956, 205-280; 1956-1965, 57-94.

Ordinations 1956, 1961, 289.

1 volume

## 03.02. Olney

164 Church book and register of the Moravian congregation at Olney, Illinois. 1856 - 1882 Contents:

Diary 1856-1857, 25-26.

Minutes of the congregation council 1856-1872, 33-42.

Results of elections 1856-1882, 49-50.

Receptions of new members 1856-1879, 55-56.

Baptisms 1856-1883, 61-63.

Confirmations 1868-1882, 65.

Marriages 1856-1882, 71-73.

Funerals 1856-1882, 77-78.

Catalogs 1856-1880, 101-110.

List of sermons 1856-1882, 111-128.

List of lovefeasts 1856, 130.

List of communion services 1856-1882, 131-132.

Account 1879, 136-137.

Ordinations 1867, 1880, 204.

Minutes of the Committee or Board of Trustees 1859-1871, 205-220.

some pages are ripped (71-90).

## 04. Indiana

## 04.01. Indiananapolis

167 Church register of the Bethany Moravian Church at Indianapolis, Indiana. 1965 - 1999

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of children 1966-1977, 1-5.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1966-1995, 97-101.

Confirmations 1966-1996, 109-112.

Receptions of new members 1965-1999, 145-156.

Marriages 1967-1999, 169-178.

Funerals 1966-1997, 205-212.

Removals and dismissals 1972-1999, 281-284.

Ordination 1983, 289.

The church was closed on Aug. 22, 1999.

1 volume

## 05. lowa

## 05.01. Moravia

159 Church register, minutes of the Board of Elders of the Moravian congregation at Moravia, Iowa. 1866 - 1872

Contents: [no page numbers]

Principles and Discipline of the united Brethren's Church at Moravia, Iowa.

Baptisms of infants 1866-1872. Baptisms of adults 1867-1870.

Marriages 1866-1878.

Funerals 1868-1878.

Minutes of the Board of Elders 1877-1879.

Historical account of the Church of the Brethren in Moravia and Diary, 1849-1879.

1 volume

# 05.02. Blairstown

160 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Blairstown, Iowa. 1878 - 1892

Contents: Alphabetical index. Baptisms 1878-1892, 1-12.

Confirmations 1880-1882, 109-110.

Receptions of new members 1878-1882, 121-124.

Marriages 1878-1885, 133-135. Funerals 1878-1890, 173-179.

Removals and dismissals 1879-1883, 221.

1 volume

# 05.03. Harmony

161 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Harmony, Iowa.

1868 - 1909

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1868-1903, 1-22.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1870-1905, 161-162.

Confirmations 1870-1905, 171-175.

Receptions of new members 1869-1900, 187-189.

Marriages 1869-1907, 199-213.

Funerals 1869-1909, 248-270.

Removals and dismissals 1872-1909, 328-329.

Ordination 1883, 344.

1 volume

water damage, mold damage

#### 05.04. Gracehill

162 Church register and catalog of the Moravian congregation at Gracehill, Iowa, vol. I.1866 - 1900

Contents: [Alphabetical index, see vol. II]

Baptisms of infants 1866-1899, 3-26.

Baptisms of adults 1895-1898, 60.

Confirmations 1868-1892, 63-65.

Receptions of new members 1868-1896, 71-73.

Marriages 1867-1898, 77-87; 1898-1900, 76.

Funerals 1868-1880, 107-120; 1880-1881, 112; 1881-1898, 88-103.

Catalog 121-149. 1 quart volume

Language: English

163 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Gracehill, Iowa, vol. II. 1900 - 1927

Contents: Alphabetical index (also for vol. I), 3-46.

Baptisms of infants 1900-1925, 50-55.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1900-1916, 150-151.

Confirmations 1900-1925, 175-179.

Receptions of new members 1900-1915, 200-203.

Marriages 1900-1918, 225-230.

Funerals 1900-1927, 300-328.

Removals and dismissals 1904-1926, 375-377.

1 volume

## 06. Kansas

## 06.01. Osborne

165 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Osborne, Kansas. 1877 - 1887

Contents:

Baptisms of infants 1878-1887, 31-37.

Baptism of adult 1885, 77.

Confirmations 1882-1885, 83-84.

Receptions of new members 1884-1885, 91-92; 1885-1886, 152.

Marriages 1879-1886, 93-95.

Funerals 1877-1887, 107-114.

Also contains a catalog for Northfield, Minnesota, 1872-1873, 165-223.

1 quart volume

# 07. Maryland

## 07.01. Carroll's Manor

19 Church register and history of the Moravian society at Carroll's Manor in Maryland.1763 - 1778 Contents:

Baptisms 1763-1778.

Also contains a map by surveyor Robert Davis of the land used by the Moravians, indicating the chapel and the burial ground.

1 notebook

#### 07.02. Graceham

# 43 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Graceham, Maryland, vol. I.1758 - 1844 Contents:

List of ministers 1745-1839.

Alphabetical index.

History and chronicle of the Moravian Church in "Manacosey" in Maryland 1745-1818, 1-77.

Receptions of members 1758-1804, 91-93.

Baptisms 1759-1819, 153-222; 1819-1822, 111-119.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravians 1823-1826, 120-122; 1826-1837, 135-152;

1837-1844, 94-106, 110.

Admissions to Holy Communion 1758-1804, 107-109.

Marriages 1762-1822, 123-134.

Marriages of non-Moravian couples 1827-1844, 83-90.

Funerals 1759-1823, 223-266; 1820-1822, 78-82.

List of children who were baptized by the Moravian minister during a journey to Cumberland and Bedford 1799, 267.

1 volume

very worn, pages loose, margins torn and damaged

Language: German until 1839; English

Edition: Alphabetical index: Henry J. Young, Moravian Families of Graceham, Mary-

land, Westminster 1999.

# Church register of the Moravian congregation at Graceham, Maryland, vol. II.1822 - 1881 Contents:

List of ministers 1819-1925.

Alphabetical index.

Baptisms 1822-1881, 1-73.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1844-1880, 112-136 (note: for earlier

baptisms, see previous volume).

Marriages 1823-1881, 141-165.

Confirmations 1823-1880, 173-184.

Funerals 1822-1880, 185-256.

Catalog 1844-1854.

This register was begun with the dedication of the new church building on October 27, 1822.

1 volume

Language: German until 1839, English

#### 45 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Graceham, Maryland, vol. III.1881, March - 1947 Contents:

Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1881-1947, 1-65.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1881-1947, 137-139.

Confirmations 1881-1933, 157-176; 1935-1946, 192-194.

Receptions of new members 1881-1948, 177-189.

Marriages 1881-1946, 197-223.

Funerals 1882-1935, 245-316; 1936-1944, 330-336; 1945-1947, 325-326.

Removals and dismissals 1882-1947, 317-323.

1 volume

## 08. Michigan

## 08.01. Canton

166 Church register of the Faith Community Moravian congregation at Canton, Michigan. 1977 - 1992

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of children 1978-1988, 1-9.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1978-1983, 41-42.

Confirmations 1978-1983, 61-64.

Receptions of members 1978-1986, 81-101.

Marriages 1977-1992, 123-129.

Funerals 1979-1982, 161.

Removals and dismissals 1981-1986, 201-202.

Ordinations 1981-1982, 221.

1 volume

### 08.02. Unionville

131 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Unionville, Michigan, vol. I.1869 - 1915

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1869-1915, 1-61.

Confirmations 1871-1913, 65-74.

Receptions of new members 1870-1896, 77-80; 1903-1908, 75-76.

Marriages 1870-1907, 81-98.

Funerals 1870-1913, 99-142.

Removals and dismissals 1872-1913, 143-145.

Ordination 1903, 151.

1 volume

Language: English until 1882, German

132 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Unionville, Michigan, vol. II.1908 - 1974

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1916-1973, 1-71.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1915-1974, 97-108b.

Confirmations 1914-1974, 109-138.

Receptions of new members 1909-1945, 145-163.

Marriages 1908-1952, 169-212; 1952-1974, 75-78s.

Funerals 1913-1974, 213-292hh.

Removals and dismissals 1943-1944, 293.

Ordinations 1957, 1974, 301.

1 volume

Language: German until 1916, English

## 09. Minnesota

## 09.01. Bethany

142 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Bethany, Minnesota, vol. 1.1867 - 1899 Contents:

Baptisms of infants 1867-1899, 1-53.

Baptisms of adults 1895, 59.

Confirmations 1868-1899, 63-74a.

Receptions of new members 1867-1885, 75-78.

Marriages 1867-1898, 79-91.

Funerals 1868-1899, 95-110.

Removals and dismissals 1871.

Vol. II is not found at MAB.

1 volume

some quires are loose.

Language: German

### 09.02. Chaska

# 26 Church register and diary of the Moravian Church at Chaska, Minnesota, vol. 1.1858 - 1869 Contents:

List of the members 1858-1864. (1-2)

Catalogs. (3-4)

Baptisms 1858-1869. (5)

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1861-1869. (6)

Confirmations 1859-1864. (7)

Catalog of children. (8)

Marriages of Moravians 1859-1869. (9)

Marriages of non-Moravians 1858-1869. (10)

Funerals of Moravians 1860-1869. (11)

Funerals of non-Moravians 1861-1869. (12)

Diary 1858-1862. (13)

1 volume

Language: German

Edition:xerox copy available

#### 27 Church register of the Moravian Church at Chaska, Minnesota, vol. II. 1870 - 1902

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1870-1902.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1870-1902.

Confirmations 1870-1901 (note sequence of pages!)

Receptions 1870-1899.

Marriages 1870-1902.

Funerals 1870-1902.

Removals and dismissals 1875-1879.

1 volume

Language: English

Edition:xerox copy available

### 09.03. Elim & Hector

Church Register of the Moravian Churches at Elim and at Hector, Renville County,
Minnesota. 1880 - 1964

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1880-1952, 7-66.

Baptisms of adults 1887-1947, 97.

Confirmations, 1883-1919, 113-120, 124-125. NB: p. 123 refers to Receptions of new members.

Confirmations 1928-1946, 100-103, 163.

Receptions of new members in Elim 1890-1945, 123, 125-127, 129, 131 (NB: pages skip back and forth).

Receptions of new members in Hector 1887-1896, 128.

Marriages 1885-1947, 135-158.

Funerals 1883-1964, 175-213.

Removals and Dismissals 1881-1914, 221-222.

It states on the first page of this register that the register was first used by Rama Moravian Church near Florenceville, Howard County, Iowa. After its dissolution in March 1887 it was sent to Br. H. Reusswig, pastor of both Elima and Hector. The book however does not have any entries relating to Rama, but pages have been cut out. Apparently the Rama pages were taken out when it was rededicated. Elim and Hector shared the same pastor, who recorded the actions of both congregations in one book.

1 volume

Language: German, English starting 1911

## 09.04. Henderson

56 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Henderson, Minnesota. 1858 - 1867 Contents:

Minutes of the church council 1860-1867, 0-1. List of members 1860-1867, 2-3. Baptisms 1858-1867, 68-82. Marriages 1858-1865, 210-211. Burials 1860-1865, 282-283. 1 volume

Language: German

## 09.05. Norton

55 Church register of the Hebron Moravian congregation at Norton, Minnesota.1867 - 1908 Contents:

Baptisms 1867-1908, 1-59.

Confirmations 1869-1906, 112-123.

Lists of new members 1868-1896, 140-155.

Mariages 1868-1906, 160-172.

Funerals 1869-1905, 200-208.

Diary 1899 Jan.-Febr., 212-215.

Dismissals 1898, 261.

1 volume

binding broken

Language: German

## 09.06. Springfield

9 Church register of Bethesda Moravian Church in Minnesota.

1892 - 1965

Contents: Alphabetical index, 1-27.
Baptisms of infants 1892-1959, 29-73.
Baptisms of adults 1896-1956, 125-126.
Confirmations 1892-1947, 137-152, 162-164, 190-192.
Reception of new members 1893-1940, 153-161.
Marriages 1893-1943, 165-177.
Funerals 1894-1965, 201-218.
Removals and dismissals 1892-1959, 249-250.
1 volume

Language: German until 1919, English

## 10. Missouri

## 10.01. Macedonia

71 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Macedonia, Missouri. 1900 - 1907

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptism of an infant 1901, 1.

Baptisms of adults 1900-1905, 136-138.

Receptions of new members 1901-1907, 176-179 (from here on pages are not num-

bered).

Marriages 1901-1907.

Funerals 1900-1904.

Removals and dismissals 1902-1906.

1 volume

## 10.02. Oakland

73 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Oakland, Missouri. 1885 - 1914

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1886-1913, 1-7.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1889-1913, 81-84.

Confirmations 1885-1913, 93-96.

Receptions of new members 1891-1909, 109-112.

Marriages 1889-1913, 121-128.

Funerals 1886-1909, 149-154.

Removals and dismissals 1889-1914, 189.

1 volume

# 10.03. Spring Grove

72 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Spring Grove, Missouri. 1890 - 1906

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1891-1899, 1-2.

Confirmations 1890-1897, 93-94.

Receptions of new members 1890-1906, 109-112.

Marriages 1895-1903, 121.

Funerals 1890, 149.

List of the members (on endpaper).

1 volume

## 10.04. Woodmount

74 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Woodmount, Missouri. 1902 - 1909

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Reception 1902, 83. Marriages 1902, 1909, 97.

Funerals 1902, 111.

1 volume

## 11. New Jersey

## 11.01. Egg Harbor

Church register of the Moravian congregation at Egg Harbor, New Jersey. 1858 - 1892

Content:

Baptisms 1858-1892, 26-125.

Funerals 1859-1892, 126-175.

Confirmations 1861-1892, 176-187.

Marriages 1858-1882, 220-240, 1882-1892, 196-217.

1 volume

pages loose

Language: German

Church register of the Moravian congregation at Egg Harbor, New Jersey. 1893 - 1927 Content:

Baptisms of infants 1893-1927, 29-92.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1903, 1907, 134, 1905-1927, 125-127.

Confirmations 1893-1927, 137-151.

Receptions of new members 1893-1926, 153-164.

Marriages 1893-1923, 165-200, 1924-1927, 116-120.

Funerals 1893-1927, 201-252.

1 volume

Language: German until Aug. 1898, English

#### 11.02. Elizabeth

39 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Elizabeth, New Jersey. 1869 - 1909

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1869-1909, 1-102.

Baptisms of older adults 1874-1906, 161-163.

Marriages 1869-1909, 203-250, 120-141.

Confirmations 1870-1909, 171-185.

Receptions of new members 1884-1909, 191-197.

Funerals 1869-1909, 251-341.

1 volume

binding broken, pages loose

Language: English, German 1876-1898

40 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Elizabeth, New Jersey. 1910 - 1957 (1968)

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1909-1937, 1-58.

Baptisms of adults 1910-1943, 125-127.

Confirmations 1910-1956, 145-157.

Receptions of new members 1910-1956, 197-207.

Marriages 1910-1955, 229-274.

Funerals 1910-1957, 289-346.

Removals and dismissals 1924-1968, 393-394.

Some entries under Removals and Dismissals were made when the congregation

was already formerly dissolved (1957).

1 volume

## 11.03. Hope

57 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Hope, New Jersey. 1771 - 1808 Contents: Alphabetical index, 256-278.

Account of the history of Hope, 1-32 (note: also has liturgy for the dedication of the hall, 1782).

Baptisms of children of Moravian parents 1772-1807, 33-56.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1776-1790, 65-68; 1790-1807, 215-227.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1784-1798, 69.

Receptions into the congregation 1776-1805, 73-74.

Admissions to Holy Communion 1777-1804, 93-94.

Marriages 1771-1808, 113-118.

List of people who moved to Hope, 1769-1806, 133-137.

List of 'Arbeiter' (church workers) 1772-1808, 173.

Funerals 1773-1808, 181-195.

Also contains a map of the settlement of Hope, p. 280.

1 volume

Language: German

Edition:alphabetical index, nr. 10.

#### 11.04. Oldman's Creek

# 98 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Oldman's Creek, New Jersey, vol. [A]. 1742 - 1794

Contents:

Baptisms 1742-1788. [1788-1790: loose quire in box with Oldman's Creek papers]

Receptions into the society 1765-1788.

Receptions into the congregation 1768-1793.

Admissions to Holy Communion 1767-1790.

Marriages 1772-1793.

Funerals undated, 1757-1794.

1 volume

some pages loose, ink corrosion

Language: English

Edition: Transcriptions: Paul Minotty, The Records of the Moravian Church at Old-

man's Creek, Gloucester County, New Jersey, 1968.

Charlotte Meldrum and John Pitts Launey, Early Church Records of Gloucester

County, NJ, 2002.

### 99 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Oldman's Creek, New Jersey, vol. B.1791 - 1810

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms 1791-1808, 1-15.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1791-1810, 53-61.

Marriages 1795-1808, 90-96.

Funerals 1794-1804, 124-128.

1 volume

Language: English

Edition: Paul Minotty, The Records of the Moravian Church at Oldman's Creek,

Gloucester County, New Jersey, 1968.

## 11.05. Palmyra

## 101 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Palmyra, New Jersey, vol. 1.1870 - 1920

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1870-1920, 1-80.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1873-1917, 107-110.

Confirmations 1871-1890, 115-130; 1891-1921, 230-237.

Receptions of new members 1871-1896, 1916-1920, 131-136 (135-136 receptions at

Riverside).

Marriages 1871-1917, 139-170; 1917-1920, 241-244.

Funerals 1870-1920, 171-220.

Entries for Riverside Moravian Church were made in this register.

1 volume

Language: German until June 1888, English

#### 102 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Palmyra, New Jersey, vol. 2.1921 - 1969

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1921-1969, 1-61.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1921-1966, 93-103.

Confirmations 1921-1969, 109-143.

Receptions of new members 1921-1969, 149-165.

Marriages 1921-1969, 174-215.

Funerals 1921-1969, 217-272, 291-292.

Removals and dismissals 1920-1921, 296.

Ordinations 1957, 1961, 301.

There seem to be entries missing between 1946-1952. Some of them were inserted at a later date.

1 volume

some pages are loose

Language: English

#### 103 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Palmyra, New Jersey, vol. 3,1970 - 1992

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1970-1992, 1-14.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1972-1990, 97-98.

Confirmations 1970-1992, 109-127.

Receptions of new members 1970-1992, 145-164.

Marriages 1970-1992, 169-189.

Funerals 1970-1992, 205-246.

Removals and dismissals 1979-1990, 281-285.

Ordination 1971, 289.

1 volume

## 11.06. Riverside

155 Church register of the German Moravian congregation in Philadelphia, from 1865 used for the Moravian congregation at Riverside, New Jersey. 1854 - 1871

Contents: Alphabetical index 1-16.

Baptisms 1854-1870, 19-64.

History of the Palmyra and Riverside home missions, 1853-1877, by J.J. Detterer, 74.

"Memorabilia" (= diary) of the Palmyra and Riverside mission congregations 1877-1885, 75-150; 1886-1894, 157-226; 1894-1900, 231-273.

Marriages 1855-1869, 151-156.

Funerals 1856-1871, 227-230.

Receptions and confirmations 1852-1871, 301-308.

Riverside shared ministers with Palmyra Moravian Church until 1892. Some entries were made in the Palmyra register.

1 volume

paper very brittle; pages are loose

Language: German; Diary in German until June 1888, English

## 12. New York

# 12.01. Brooklyn

6 Church register of the Moravian Church in Brooklyn, New York.

1853 - 1900

Contents: Alphabetical index, 340-369.

List of the original members, trustees and pastor of the Brooklyn congregation.

Baptisms of infants 1853-1892, 1-49; 1892 (July) - 1900, 100-114.

Confirmations and adult baptisms 1866-1900, 50-69.

Receptions 1874-1900, 70-90. Marriages 1856-1900, 151-206. Burials 1864-1900, 251-337.

1 volume

Language: English

7 Church register of the Moravian Church in Brooklyn, New York.

1914 - 1940

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1914-1940, 1-8.

Baptisms of adults 1921-1925, 94.

Confirmations 1915-1939, 109-111.

Receptions 1914-1937, 149-152.

Marriages 1914-1940, 173-199.

Burials 1914-1940, 217-247.

Removals and dismissals 1915-1936, 293.

1 volume

pages are loos, paper is brittle

# 12.02. Camden Valley

17 Catalog and church register of the Moravian Church in Camden Valley, New York.1833 - 1868 Contents:

Baptisms 1833-1868, 1-12. Marriages 1833-1868, 61-73. Interments 1833-1868 (from rear).

1 volume

Language: English

Edition:transcript + history of Camden Moravian Church, by Richard M. Wilson

# 12.03. New Hartford

135 Church register of the Hilltop Moravian Church at New Hartford, New York.1955 - 1962

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1955-1962, 1-6.

Baptisms of adults 1958, 97.

Confirmations 1956-1962, 109-110.

Receptions of new members 1955-1962, 145-151.

Funeral 1958, 205.

Removals and dismissals 1957-1962, 277-278.

Ordination

This congregation is presently called Good Shepherd Moravian Church.

1 volume

# 12.04. Sichem

123 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Sichem, New York. 1756 - 1773

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Receptions of new members 1757-1771 (before p. 1)

Baptisms 1756-1773, 1-12. Funerals 1757-1772, 69-72. Marriages 1767-1768, 125.

1 volume

some loose quires Language: English

## 12.05. Staten Island

Private register of baptisms performed by Christian Arthur Weber, pastor (emeritus) at Castleton Hill Moravian Church. 1938 - 1952

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1939-1943, 10-13, 1944-1952, 65-71.

Marriages 1938-1951, 15-33.

Funerals 1938-1945, 40-63, 1945-1952, 74-87.

Confirmation 1950, 100.

1 volume

See also the regular registers of Castleton Hills Moravian Church.

pages are loose Language: English

### 22 Church register of the Castleton Hill Moravian Church at Castleton Corners, 1890 - 1927

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Catalog, 1-10.

Confirmations 1891-1927, 11-20, 200-212.

Baptisms of adults 1891-1927, 21-26.

Receptions and readmissions 1890-1927, 31-40, 250-259, 266-267.

Baptisms of infants 1890-1927, 41-50, 71-99, 230-247.

Marriages 1890-1927, 51-60, 100-124, 269-275.

Dismissals 1895-1924, 61-64.

Funerals 1902-1927, 125-199, 260-264.

1 volume

binding broken, pages and quires are loose, paper weak and can easily be torn

Language: English

## Church register of the Castleton Hill Moravian Church at Castleton Corners, vol. II.1928 - Sept. 1948

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1928-1948, 1-36.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1928-1948, 97-104.

Confirmations 1928-1948, 108-141.

Receptions 1928-1948, 145-167.

Marriages 1928-1948, 169-204, 287-293.

Funerals 1928-1948, 205-269.

Removals and dismissals 1928-1937, 285.

1 volume

Also see the private register by C.A. Weber, ChReg 173.

pages and quires are loose, paper weak and can easily be torn

Language: English

### 24 Church register of the Castleton Hill Moravian Church at Castleton Corners, vol. III.Oct. 1948 - 1960

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1948-1960, 1-39.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1948-1960, 97-

Confirmations 1948-1960, 109-129. (Note: 1957 entered incorrectly under recep-

tions, 265-269)

Receptions 1948-, 145-168, 255-265, 270-280, 289-291.

Marriages 1948-1960, 169-192.

Funerals 1948-1960, 205-232.

Removals and dismissals 1952-1960, 281-287.

1 volume

Also see the private register by C.A. Weber, ChReg 173.

### 25 Church register of the Castleton Hill Moravian Church at Castleton Corners, vol. IV.1961 - 1972

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1961-1972, 1-26.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1961-1972, 97-98.

Confirmations 1961-1972, 109-124.

Receptions 1961-1972, 145-168, 49-51.

Marriages 1961-1972, 169-201.

Funerals 1961-1972, 205-257.

Removals and dismissals 1961-1972, 281-289.

1 volume

Language: English

# 46 Church register of the Great Kills Moravian Church on Staten Island, New York, vol. [0]. 1896 - 1920

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1896-1918, 1-22.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1897-1920, 97-104.

Confirmations 1897-1920, 109-121. (note: confirmations 1914, p. 136)

Receptions of new members 1897-1913, 125-135; 1915-1920, 229.

Marriages 1897-1919, 137-161.

Funerals 1896-1912, 173-220; 1912-1920, 50-68.

Removals and dismissals 1897-1914, 221-223.

Since the later volumes are numbered 1-4, this volume is number '0'.

1 volume

pages are loose, binding broken

Language: English

## 47 Church register of the Great Kills Moravian Church on Staten Island, New York, vol. 1.1920 Oct. 18.

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1920-1944, 1-35.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1922-1944, 93-95.

Confirmations 1921-1944, 109-117.

Receptions of new members 1921-1944, 149-157.

Marriages 1920-1944, 171-191.

Funerals 1920-1944, 215-264.

When the volumes were numbered, the previous volume (1896-1920) was omitted.

1 volume

pages are loose, binding broken, paper brittle

Language: English

## 48 Church register of the Great Kills Moravian Church on Staten Island, New York, vol. 2.1945 - 1964 Oct.

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1945-1964, 1-30.

Baptisms of adults 1945-1956, 97-98.

Confirmations 1945-1964, 109-114.

Receptions of new members 1945-1964, 145-154.

Marriages 1945-1964, 169-187.

Funerals 1945-1964, 205-245.

Removals and dismissals 1948-1964, 281.

1 volume

Language: English

### 49 Church register of the Great Kills Moravian Church on Staten Island, New York, vol. 3,1964 Nov. - 1981

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1964-1988, 1-15.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1965-1984, 97-98.

Confirmations 1965-1984, 109-127.

Receptions of new members 1965-1988, 145-164.

Marriages 1965-1988, 169-187.

Funerals 1964-1989, 205-241.

Removals and dismissals 1964-1989, 281-288.

Ordinations 1969, 1986, 289.

1 volume

Language: English

## 50 Church register of the Great Kills Moravian Church on Staten Island, New York, vol. 4.1989 - 1997

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1989-1997, 1-5.

Baptisms of adults 1989-1993, 43.

Confirmations 1989-1997, 61-63.

Receptions of members 1989-1997, 81-88.

Marriages 1989-1997, 121-124.

Funerals 1989-1997, 161-173.

Removals and dismissals 1989-1997, 203-205.

Ordinations

1 volume

Language: English

## 79 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Midland Beach, Staten Island. 1961 - 1975

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1961-1974. 1-12.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1961-1969, 97.

Confirmations 1961-1970, 109-117.

Receptions of new members 1961-1970, 145-152.

Marriages 1961-1975, 169-180.

Funerals 1961-1974, 205-225.

Removals and dismissals 1961-1974, 281-284.

1 volume

some waterdamage Language: English

### 86 Church register of the Moravian congregation at New Dorp, Staten Island. 1749 - 1807

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms, marriages, funerals, receptions, in chronological order 1749-1786, 1-20.

Baptisms 1787-1804, 21-39; 1805-1806, 42-47; 1806, 52.

Receptions into the congregation 1787-1807, 40-41.

Admissions to Holy Communion 1787-1806, 48.

Marriages 1787-1806, 56-63.

Funerals 1787-1804, 64-66.

Cannot be handled!

1 folder

very bad: pages loose, edges missing

Language: English

Edition:printed version?

## 87 Church register of the Moravian congregation at New Dorp, Staten Island. 1807 - 1862

Note: the register consists of three parts: baptisms, marriages and funerals. In each part the page numbering starts with 1. After the parts for marriages and funerals were full, entries were recorded in part I.

Contents:

List of ministers, 1742-1962.

Alphabetical index.

Baptisms 1807-1862, part I 1-112.

List of new members 1839, part I 203.

Marriages 1807-1849, part II 1-54; 1850-1862, part I 160-171.

Funerals 1807-1849, part III 1-50; 1849-1858, part I 194-203; 1859-1862, part I 133-136.

Funerals by the Moravian minister at other burial grounds 1814-1829, part III 50-54 (note sequence of entries).

The page numbers

1 volume

restored, rebound Language: English

# 88 Church register of the Moravian congregation at New Dorp, Staten Island. 1863 - 1918 Contents: Alphabetical index 0-30.

Baptisms of children 1863-1913, 32-131; 1913-1918, 380-388.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1864-1893, 132-137; 1893-1905, 154-159;

1906-1917, 375-379; 1916-1918, 370 (note overlap in years).

Confirmations 1864-1901, 138-153; 1902-1918, 340-361.

Receptions of new members (and readmissions) 1863-1902, 160-169; 1901-1909, 400-408; 1909-1918, 411-419.

Dismissals and removals 1893-1902, 170-171; 1906-1917, 175-176. (note: no entries were made during 1903-1905).

Marriages 1863-1914, 180-269; 1914-1918, 433-443.

Funerals 1863-1911, 280-339; 1911-1916, 270-278; 1917-1918, 449-450.

List of children 1866-1867, 409-410.

List of communicants 1866-1867, 426-431.

Also contains "A Historical Account of Origin of the Mission-Chapel of the Moravian Church at Castleton Corners, Staten Island, NY", (ms.) 1872, and a printed order of service of the laying of the corner stone at Castleton Corners, 1872 (attached to p. 31).

Also contains a map of the God's Acre with the location of the graves, 279.

Also contains a "History of the Moravian Church on Staten Island from its commencement to the year 1863, read at the centennial celebration, July 15th, 1863", by E. L[eibert], 456-468.

1 volume

binding broken

Language: English

# 89 Church register of the Moravian congregation at New Dorp, Staten Island. 1919 - 1961 Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of children 1919-1961, 1-144.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1919-1957, 193-205.

Confirmations 1919-1961, 217-291.

Receptions of new members 1919-1960, 293-340; 1960-1961, 589.

Removals and dismissals 1925-1947, 590-596.

Marriages 1919-1951, 341-428; 1951-1961, 150-187.

Funerals 1919-1961, 429-586; 1961, 597.

Ordinations 1925-1953, 601-602.

1 volume

Language: English

# 138 Church register of the Edgewater Moravian congregation at Stapleton on Staten Island, New York. 1889 - 1901

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1890-1901, 1-27.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1890-1900, 81-83.

Confirmations 1890-1901, 93-107.

Receptions of new members 1890-1897, 109-120; 1897-1901, 69-72.

Marriages 1890-1901, 121-137.

Funerals 1890-1901, 149-169.

Removals and dismissals 1892-1901, 189-194.

Ordination 1889, 197.

The present name of this congregation is Vanderbilt AVenue Moravian Church (since 1946).

1 volume

binding broken, pages loose

Language: English

# 139 Church register of the Edgewater Moravian congregation at Stapleton on Staten Island, New York. 1902 - 1933

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1902-1933, 1-64.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1904-1929, 93-95.

Confirmations 1904-1933, 111-133.

Receptions of new members 1905-1933, 149-162.

Marriages 1902-1928, 177-216; 1928-1933, 300-304.

Funerals 1902-1933, 217-266.

Removals and dismissals 1904-1921, 293-294.

The present name of this congregation is Vanderbilt AVenue Moravian Church (since 1946).

1 volume

binding broken, pages loose

# 12.06. New York City

#### 94 Church register of the Moravian congregation at New York City (First Church).1744 - 1775

Contents: Alphabetical indices.

Baptisms, marriages and funerals, listed chronologically 1744-1775, 1-96.

Original register (compare 93).

1 quart volume Language: English

#### 93 Church register of the Moravian congregation at New York City (First Church).1744 - 1805

Contents: Alphabetical index, 145-149.

Baptisms 1744-1805, 1-54.

Receptions of new members [1748]-1804, 76-96 (note: abbreviation L.S. means

Lord's Supper).

Marriages 1751-1805, 153-158.

Funerals n.d. 1754-1805, 169-201.

Seems to be a compilation of older sources by E.G. Shewkirk, 1784, and continued as a church register from there on.

1 volume

partly copied

pages are loose

Language: English

#### 95 Church register of the Moravian congregation at New York City (First Church). 1801 - 1890

Contents: Alphabetical index, 4-30.

Baptisms 1801-1863, 31-125; 1863-1890, 321-342.

Marriages 1801-1833, 131-150; 1833-1890, 251-304.

Funerals 1801-1890, 151-243.

1 volume

binding loose, pages loose

Language: English

#### 96 Church register of the German Moravian congregation at New York City (Second

### Church, Tremont Terrace Church), vol. 2.

1870 - 1890

Contents:

Baptisms of infants 1870-1890, 1-120; 1890, 235-237.

Confirmations 1870-1890, 121-128.

Receptions of new member 1870-1890, 133-140.

Marriages 1870-1886, 141-166; 1886-1890, 207-231; 1890, 240-242.

Funerals 1870-1890, 167-202.

Removals and dismissals 1885-1888, 232-233.

Vol. 1 was not found.

1 volume

Language: German

#### 97 Church register of the German Moravian congregation at New York City (Second Church, Tremont Terrace Church), vol. 3.

1891 - 1909

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1891-1909, 1-75.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1893-1907, 137.

Confirmations 1891-1908, 157-162.

Receptions of new members 1891-1909, 177-183.

Marriages 1891-1902, 197-244; 1902-1907, 184-196; 1907-1909, 304-306.

Funerals 1891-1909, 245-284.

Removals and dismissals 1891-1905, 317-318.

Ordination 1903, 333. 1 volume

Language: German until Oct. 1900

## 12.07. Utica

# 133 Church register of the (first) Moravian Church at Utica, New York, vol. I. 1855 - 1881 Contents:

Receptions of new members 1856-1861, 4-5.

Minutes of the organization of the Utica congregation 1856, 6r.

Marriages 1855-1874, 6v-24r; 1878-1880, 151r-153r; 1880-1881, 160r-161r.

Baptisms of infants 1854-1870, 24v-69r; 1871-1881, 89v-125v.

Funerals 1856-1869, 70r-79v; 1870-1881, 169v-188r.

Confirmations 1856-1880, 80r-89r; 1880, 153v-154r.

With photocopy in box.

1 volume

all pages are loose, some ink is fading

Language: German

## 16 Church register of the (first) Moravian Church at Utica, New York, vol. II.1881 - 1910 (1911)

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1881-1910, 1-98.

Confirmations 1881-1910, 173-192, 123-126.

Marriages 1881-1910, 205-252, 146-159.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1886-1906, 161-162.

Receptions of new members 1881-1910, 193-201.

Funerals 1881-1910, 253-330.

Removals and dismissals 1881-1911, 333-336 (entries not strictly chronological!).

Ordinations 1902-1911, 345.

1 volume

binding loose, paper brittle

Language: German until 1889, English

### 134 Church register of the (first) Moravian Church at Utica, New York, vol. III. 1911 - 1954

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1911-1954, 1-37.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1911-1947, 125-128.

Confirmations 1911-1952, 145-158.

Receptions of new members 1911-1952, 197-209.

Marriages 1911-1953, 229-281.

Funerals 1911-1954, 289-361.

Removals and dismissals 1939-1953, 393-394.

Ordination 1940, 401.

1 volume

# 13. North Dakota

# 13.01. Bethel

5 Catalog, church register and diary of the Moravian Church at Bethel, North Dakota. 1891 - 1916

Contents: Catalogue, 3-37.

Baptisms of infants 1891-1916, 41-72.

Baptisms of adults 1902-1908, 105.

Confirmations 1891-1915, 109-115.

Receptions of new members 1891-1912, 123-126.

Marriages 1892-1916, 137-145.

Funerals 1891-1916, 163-173.

Removals and dismissals 1892-1905, 193.

Ordinations 1904, 199.

Diary with memorabilia 1891-1900, 201-383.

1 volume

pages are loose Language: English

# 13.02. Donnybrooke

Catalog, church register, and diary of the Aurelia Moravian Congregation at Donnybrooke, North Dakota. 1903 - 1927

Contents: List of new members (catalogue) according to choirs, 2-27.

Baptisms of infants 1903-1927, 32-48, 50-52/2.

Baptisms of adults 1914-1920, 49.

Confirmations 1904-1927, 53-64.

Marriages 1904-1920, 65-70.

Funerals 1908-1925, 71-84.

Dismissals 1918, 88.

Diary 1903-1909, 90-152.

1 volume

Language: German until 1912, English

# 4 Catalog and church register of the Tagus Moravian Church and after 1927 continued for Aurelia Moravian Church. 1915 - 1962

Contents: Catalogue 26-133 (many blank pages).

Baptisms of infants 1916-1962, 150-168.

Baptisms of adults 1933-1948, 200-202.

Marriages n.d.-1962, 220-225.

Marriages 1915-1939, 286-287.

Funerals 1918-1951, 250-259.

Confirmations 1929-1953, 270-275.

Receptions 1939-1962, 304-305.

Index (incomplete), 390-399.

Contains some official acts that were performed by Richard Mewaldt in other Moravian churches (see list).

Some of the entries for marriages performed by Alfred L. Bautz are not dated.

Some confirmations and baptisms performed in 1964 were not entered in the register (see enclosed letter).

1 volume

## 13.03. Embden

Catalog, church register and diary of the Moravian congregation at Tabor, later called Embden, North Dakota. 1900 - 1953

Contents:

Catalog 1-33.

Baptisms of infants 1900-1953, 36-63.

Confirmations 1901-1953, 90-93, 78-84.

Receptions of new members 1902-1944, 94-97.

Funerals 1903-1950, 130-144, 98-103.

Marriages 1902-1950, 108-119.

Memorabilia (annual report) 1901, 169-171; 1902, 185-190; 1903, 209-215; 1904,

239-247; 1905, 272-277; 1907, 145-149.

Removals and dismissals 1905-1908, 150-151.

Ordinations 1904, 1908, 154.

Diary 1900-1901, 156-168; 1902, 172-183; 1903, 191-208; 1904, 216-238; 1905, 248-

271; 1906-1907, 281-298.

1 volume

Language: German until 1922

36 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Embden, North Dakota. 1953 - 1966 Contents:

Baptisms of infants 1956-1966, 3-5.

Confirmations 1956-1966, 121.

Receptions of new members 1954-1963, 171.

Marriages 1962-1965, 191.

Funerals 1953-1966, 231-235.

1 volume

## 14. Ohio

## 14.01. Beersheba

124 Church register of the Moravian congregation Beersheba in Ohio. 1805 - 1854 Contents: Alphabetical index 252-282.

"A succinct narrative of the most remarkable events, that have a reference to the establishment of a congregation of the United Brethren on the Westside of the river Muskingum", chronicle of the beginnings of Beersheba 1796-1813, 5-14. Letter from Carl Gotthelf Reichel in Bethlehem to Br. Rauschenberger about the regulations for keeping a church register, 1815 (German, insert).

List of the original families, 20-25.

Baptisms of infants 1805-1828, 34-40.

Baptisms of adults who are not Moravians 1811-1835, 56.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1806-1829, 60-83; 1829-1854, 89-107. Marriages 1807-1825, 84-88.

Funerals 1805-1831, 162-169.

Funerals of non-Moravians 1812-1835, 1838-1850, 180-200 (note: some non-

Moravian funerals might have been mistakenly entered under the former category; entries for 1835-1838 were made in the Gnadenhutten register).

Some pages were not photocopied. The original register is kept WHERE?

1 bundle

photocopy

Language: alternating English/German

### 14.02. Dover

#### 30 Church register of the Moravian Church at Dover, Ohio.

1910 - 1929

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1910-1923, 1-20.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1910-1923, 97-101.

Confirmations 1910-1924, 109-119.

Receptions 1910-1923, 145-164.

Marriages 1910-1929, 169-212, 301-304.

Funerals 1910-1922, 213-237.

Removals and dismissals 1910-1921, 293.

Contains entries for both First Moravian Church and Second (later South) Moravian Church.

Also see box with notes about additional official acts, not recorded in the registers.

1 volume

pages and quires are loose, paper brittle

Language: English

#### 31 Church register of the Moravian Church at Dover, Ohio.

1930 - 1948

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1931-1949, 1-39.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1931-1948, 97-108, 88-94.

Confirmations 1931-1948, 109-136.

Receptions 1931-1948, 145-168, 287-289, 141-143.

Marriages 1930-1948, 169-204.

Funerals 1930-1948, 205-280, 290-291.

Removals and dismissals 1930-1948, 281-286.

Contains entries for both First Moravian Church and Second (later South) Moravian Church.

Also see box with notes about additional official acts, not recorded in the regis-

ters.

1 volume

pages and guires are loose, paper brittle

Language: English

#### 67 Church register of the First Moravian Church at Dover, Ohio. 1949 - 1957 (1958)

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1949-1957, 1-28.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1950-1955, 103-108; 1955-1957, 77-79.

Confirmations 1949-1958, 109-127.

Receptions of new members 1949-1956, 145-168; 1956-1957, 276-288.

Marriages 1949-1957, 169-185.

Funerals 1949-1957, 205-261.

Removals and dismissals

Also contains entries for the Second Moravian Church, that was a filial of First Moravian until 1958.

The entries for 1958 were transferred to the following volume.

1 volume

Language: English

#### 68 Church register of the First Moravian Church at Dover, Ohio.

1958 - 1976

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1958-1976, 3-31.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1958-1976, 97-106.

Confirmations 1958-1976, 109-123.

Receptions of new members 1958-1976, 145-164.

Marriages 1958-1976, 169-204; 1976, 204-52.

Funerals 1958-1970, 1975-1976, 205-249 (note: funerals from July 11 1970 - Sept. 5

1974 are recorded in the following volume!).

Removals and dismissals 1958-1976, 281-288.

Ordination 1961, 289.

1 volume

Language: English

# 32 Church register of First Moravian Church at Dover, Ohio.

(1974) 1977 - 1992

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1977-1992, 1-22.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1977-1992, 41-48.

Confirmations 1977-1992, 61-81A.

Receptions 1977-1992, 81-103.

Marriages 1977-1992, 121-145.

Funerals 1970-1974, 1977-1992, 160.10-205A. (note: funerals 1974-77 in preceding

volume)

Removals and dismissals 1977-1992, 201-212.

Ordination 1978, 221.

1 volume

Language: English

## 33 Church register of the Second or South Moravian Church at Dover, Ohio. 1959 - 1988

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1959-1987, 1-7.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1959-1982, 97-99.

Confirmations 1959-1984, 109-115.

Receptions 1959-1987, 145-153.

Marriages 1961-1986, 169-175.

Funerals 1959-1986, 205-229.

Removals and dismissals 1960-1988, 281-288. (note: see additions on p. 288)

For entries before 1959 see combined records of Dover First Moravian Church.

South Moravian Church merged with First on February 22, 1989.

1 volume

## 14.03. Gnadenhutten

136 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Gnadenhutten and Sharon, Ohio.1800 - 1869

Contents: Alphabetical index 410-474.

Baptisms of infants 1800-1855, 3-97; 1855-1869, 105-126; 1869, 170.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1815-1869, 100-103.

Marriages 1801-1868, 218-255.

Funerals at Gnadenhutten 1800-1869, 291-362.

Funerals at Sharon 1815-1855, 127-155.

The congregations at Gnadenhutten and Sharon share the same pastor until 1852, who resided at Gnadenhutten. Entries for both congregations were made in the same register (probably for the period both congregations shared the same pastor). Only for funerals the entries were made under seperate headings for Gnadenhutten (291-362) and Sharon (127-155).

Entries after 1865 almost illegible.

2 bundles photocopy

Language: German until Nov. 1847, English

# 14.04. New Philadelphia

# 41 Church register of Fry's Valley Moravian Church in New Philadelphia, Ohio. 1890 - 1989 Contents:

History of Fry's Valley Moravian Church.

Catalogs.

Volume 2 of the church register:

Alphabetical index to the church register.

Baptisms of infants 1891-1934, 1-30.

Baptisms of adults 1895-1933, 83-91.

Confirmations 1891-1934, 93-108, 36-38.

Receptions of new members 1891-1922, 109-113.

Marriages 1891-1934, 121-143.

Funerals 1890-1925, 149-188; 1925-1934, 1972-1973, 70-80 (note: random sequence

of entries for the latter period).

Removals and dismissals 1896-1925, 189-190.

Ordination 1903, 197.

Volume 3 of the church register:

List of ministers 1935-1988.

Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1935-1989, 1-31.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1935-1988, 97-106.

Confirmations 1935-1988, 109-123.

Receptions of new members 1935-1989, 145-157.

Marriages 1936-1989, 169-184.

Funerals 1935-1989, 205-235.

Removals and dismissals 1941-1988, 281-285.

Ordination 1985, 289.

Volume 1 of the church register is missing.

1 volume

1 photocopy

Language: English

# 90 Church register of the Schoenbrunn Community Moravian Church at New Philadelphia.

1947 - 1975

Contents:

Baptisms of infants 1947-1975, 2-9.

Confirmations 1948-1974, 16-21.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1949-1973, 26-27.

Receptions of new members 1950-1975, 48-55.

Marriages 1947-1975, 80-89.

Funerals 1952-1975, 102-107.

Dismissals 1953-1975, 124-127.

1 folder

photocopy

Language: English

# 91 Church register of the Schoenbrunn Community Moravian Church at New Philadelphia.

1975 - 1992

Contents:

Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1976-1992, 1-13.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1975-1992, 97-99.

Confirmations 1977-1992, 109-115.

Receptions of new members 1975-1992, 145-157.

Marriages 1975-1992, 169-185.
Funerals 1975-1992, 205-224.
Removals and dismissals 1975-1985, 281-288; 1985-1991, 290-292 (note sequence of entries); 1992, 271.
Ordinations 1981, 1990, 289.
1 folder
photocopy
Language: English

# 14.05. Port Washington

# 104 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Port Washington, Ohio, vol. 2.1896 - 1942 (1963) Contents:

Baptisms of infants 1896-1942, 9-24.

Confirmations and baptisms of adults 1897-1942, 59-73.

Receptions of new members 1920-1942, 99-103.

Marriages 1896-1942, 119-133.

Funerals 1896-1942, 149-234.

Removals and dismissals 1908-1942, 1963, 235-235.

Volume 1 was not found.

1 volume

Language: English

## 105 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Port Washington, Ohio, vol. 2.1943 - 1973

Contents: Alphabetical index 1-71.

Baptisms of infants 1943-1973, 73-89.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1943-1958, 169-173.

Confirmations 1945-1973, 181-187.

Receptions of new members 1948-1973, 217-221.

Marriages 1944-1973, 241-251.

Funerals 1943-1973, 277-300.

Removals and dismissals 1947-1968, 353-357.

1 volume

Language: English

# 106 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Port Washington, Ohio, interim register. 1961 - 1964

According to a note in this register, this register was kept from 1961-1964, when the original register (vol. 3) was misplaced. Older entries (1944-1961) were reconstructed (from other sources?), but in 1964 the original reappeared and was continued to be used. Use vol. 3.

1 volume

### 14.06. Sharon

## 14.07. Uhrichsville

127 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Uhrichsville, Ohio, vol. I. 1875 - 1913

Contents: Alphabetical index, 1-22.

Baptisms of infants 1875-1913, 27-57.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1876-1913, 131-137.

Confirmations 1876-1913, 139-147.

Receptions of new members 1874-1889, 155-162; 1890-1896, 150-154; 1896-1899,

148-149; 1899-1909, 269-271.

Marriages 1875-1912, 163-194e.

Funerals 1875-1913, 195-248.

Removals and dismissals 1879-1910, 260-263.

Ordination 1912, 272.

1 volume

binding broken, pages and quires are loose

Language: English

128 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Uhrichsville, Ohio, vol. II. 1914 - 1964

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1914-1964, 1-46.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1917-1961, 94-102.

Confirmations 1915-1961, 109-116.

Receptions of new members 1916-1963, 149-154.

Marriages 1913-1963, 173-198.

Funerals 1914-1964, 217-278.

Removals and dismissals 1925-1964, 293-296.

Ordinations 1933, 1961, 301.

1 volume

Language: English

129 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Uhrichsville, vol. III. 1964 - 1976

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1964-1976, 1-6.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1965-1975, 97-99.

Confirmations 1965-1975, 109-114.

Receptions of new members 1964-1976, 145-149.

Marriages 1965-1976, 169-176.

Funerals 1964-1976, 205-215.

Removals and dismissals 1964-1976, 281-282.

Ordinations 1966, 1975, 289.

1 volume

Language: English

130 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Uhrichsville, vol. IV. 1977 - 1979

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1977-1979, 1-2.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1977-1979, 41.

Confirmations 1977-1979, 61-62.

Receptions of new members 1977-1979, 81-82.

Marriages 1977-1979, 121.

Funerals 1977-1978, 161.

Removals and dismissals 1977-1979, 201. Ordination 1981, 221. 1 volume

# 14.08. Warwick

137 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Sharon, Ohio.

Until 1852 Sharon shared the same pastor with Gnadenhutten, who recorded the official acts for Sharon in the Gnadenhutten register.

See common register of Gnadenhutten and Sharon, under Gnadenhutten.

# 15. Pennsylvania

# 15.01. Allemangel

1 Church Register of the Moravian Church in Allemangel (Lynn) and after 1771 continued in Gnadenhütten. 1745 - 1811

Contents:

Short history of the beginnings in Allemangel;

Register of the members, with biographical information, 26-66.

Baptisms 1745-1814, 234-281.

Receptions into the congregation 1743-1800, 300-306.

Admissions to Holy Communion in Gnadenhütten 1773-1802, 330-311.

Marriages in Allemangel 1754, 1764, 340.

Marriages in Gnadenhütten 1774-1792, 342-341 (sic).

Receptions into the society 1755-1786, 360-363.

Funerals in Allemangel (Lynn) 1754-1769, 384-394 (sometimes with memoirs or short biographies).

Funerals in other places 1776-1792, 395.

Funerals in Gnadenhütten 1774-1811, 396-408.

With alphabetical index.

1 volume

very poor. binding is broken. pages torn and loose. to be restored!

Language: German, English starting 1771

Edition: See translation and transcript by Raymond E. Hollenbach.

# 15.02. Bethel

18 Church register of the Moravian society at Bethel (on the Swatara), Pennsylvania.1744 - 1848 Contents:

Baptisms according to family names (use index in front) 1744-1760, 1-16.

Baptisms chronologically 1761-1848, 58-193.

Funerals 1752-1833, 210-240. (with a map of the Godsacre, 211).

Marriages 1752-1842, 266-275.

Also contains extracts from the church register (for PHC), 1819-1825.

1 volume

front flap loos

Language: German

### 15.03. Bethlehem

10 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Bethlehem, vol. I. 1742 - 1756 Nov. 26

Contents: alphabetical index (20th. century addition).

Baptisms of infants 1742-1756, 1-67.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1742-1756, 85-128, 157-159.

Marriages 1742-1756, 129-145.

Funerals 1742-1756, 177-249.

Contains also official acts performed by Moravian ministers outside of Bethlehem (even as far as the Caribean).

1 volume

Language: German

Edition:Clarence E. Beckel, Marriage records of the Bethlehem Moravian Congregation with Supplementary Biographical Material 1742-1892, 2 vols. typescript 1936.

Reading room: B.4 + B.5.

# 11 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Bethlehem, vol. II. (1735) 1756 - 1801 Contents:

Baptisms of infants 1756-1801, 1-66.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1757-1794, 109-117.

Marriages 1757-1801, 163-197.

Baptims of children of non-Moravians 1768-1801, 535-546, 207-214, 513-518.

Funerals 1757-1801, 215-370, 410-459.

Receptions into the congregation 1756-1801, 375-385.

Admissions to Holy Communion 1761-1801, 391-399.

Receptions of (male) acolytes 1745-1789, 483-484.

Receptions of (female) acolytes 1745-1790, 493-494.

Receptions of acolytes 1790-1800, insert before p. 497.

List of ordained brothers and sisters 1735-1790, 499-508 (NB: this is not a list of ordinations, but of people who were ordained, either here or in Europe).

Funerals of strangers 1777-1799, 531.

Funerals outside of Bethlehem, performed by Moravian ministers 1783-1790, 547-548.

Contains also official acts performed by Moravian ministers outside of Bethlehem (even as far as the Caribean).

The entries for funerals in many cases contain extensive memoirs.

1 volume

Language: German

Edition:Clarence E. Beckel, Marriage records of the Bethlehem Moravian Congregation with Supplementary Biographical Material 1742-1892, 2 vols. typescript 1936.

Reading room: B.4 + B.5.

# 12 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Bethlehem, vol. III. 1802 - 1837 (1849)

Contents: Alphabetical index, 439-470.

Baptisms of infants 1802-1837, 1-100, 155-170, 357.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1802-1834, 101-105.

Marriages 1802-1837, 111-154.

Funerals 1802-1837, 171-281.

Receptions into the congregation 1802-1804, 321-322.

Admission to Holy Communin (confirmations) 1802-1837, 335-341.

Receptions as acolytes 1802-1803, 345.

Ordinations 1802-1837, 355.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravians 1802-1849, 371-397, 359-370, 397-402, 407-

415, 406 (note: entries for 1830-1837 were made in two different parts of the register).

Marriages of non-Moravians 1836-1837, 405.

1 volume

Language: German

Edition:Clarence E. Beckel, Marriage records of the Bethlehem Moravian Congregation with Supplementary Biographical Material 1742-1892, 2 vols. typescript 1936.

Reading room: B.4 + B.5.

## 13 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Bethlehem, vol. IV. 1838 - 1854

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1838-1854, 1-84.

Baptims of adults 1841-1854, 143-144.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1838-1854, 401-423.

Marriages 1838-1854, 151-306.

Funerals 1838-1854, 171-247 (= '439').

Funerals of strangers 1848-1854, 440-442.

Confirmations 1838-1854, 321-328 (note: these pages follow after 442!).

Ordinations 1838-1854, 398-399.

When rebinding the register in 1854 the order of the pages was changed (notably in the back).

1 volume

Language: German

Edition:Clarence E. Beckel, Marriage records of the Bethlehem Moravian Congregation with Supplementary Biographical Material 1742-1892, 2 vols. typescript 1936.

Reading room: B.4 + B.5.

## 14 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Bethlehem, vol. V. 1854 - 1865

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1856-1865, 1-68.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1856-1865, 165-167.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1854-1865, 175-190.

Confirmations 1854-1864, 201-209.

Marriages 1854-1865, 251-278.

Funerals 1855-1865, 301-389.

Ordinations 1854-1865, 475-479.

1 volume

Language: German

Edition:Clarence E. Beckel, Marriage records of the Bethlehem Moravian Congregation with Supplementary Biographical Material 1742-1892, 2 vols. typescript 1936.

Reading room: B.4 + B.5.

### 158 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Bethlehem, Pennsylvania. 1742 - 1747

Contents: [no page numberin]

Baptisms of infants 1742-1747.

Baptisms of adults: 'Indians, negroes and persons from other sects and religions' 1742-1747.

Marriages 1742-1748.

Funerals and deaths 1742-1744.

The entries do not differ from those in vol. I. The relationship between both registers is not clear. The (19th century) binding identifies this register as vol. I of the general register. This is not correct.

1 volume

Language: German

### 15 Church register of the Moravian Church at South Bethlehem.

1861 - 1905

Contents: Alphabetical index, 500-547.

Baptisms of infants 1861-1905, 1-148, 179-186, 350-352.

Baptisms of adults 1868-1905, 150-149 (!), 187.

Confirmations 1864-1905, 151-173.

Receptions 1878-1905, 191-200, 327-328.

Marriages 1862-1905, 201-234.

Funerals 1873-1905, 235-252, 255-313.

Removals and dismissals 1878-1905, 253-254.

Also contains a list of ministers 1854-1945 (front flap) and a 'Historical Account of the Commencement of the Moravian Church in Bethlehem South', 401-409.

1 volume

binding is broken, pages are loose and torn. to be restored Language: English

# 15.04. Coopersburg

21 Church register of the Moravian Church at Coopersburg, Pennsylvania. 1884 - 1944

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1885-1944, 1-29.

Baptisms of adults 1884-1944, 137-142.

Confirmations 1884-1944, 157-174.

Receptions of new members 1885-1943, 177-190.

Marriages 1890-1944, 197-217.

Funerals 1892-1943, 245-286.

Removals and dismissals 1893-1944, 317-323.

Ordinations 1929-1931, 333.

1 volume

binding loose, pages loose

# 15.05. Coveville

20 Church register of the home mission at Coveville and Oakland, Pennsylvania. 1858 - 1910 Contents:

Baptisms of infants 1858-1906, 1-44.

Catalogues 1865, 347-350; 1868, 354-355; 1871, 100-101; 1876, 260-264.

Diary 1876-1879, 131-134.

Baptisms of adults 1900-1906, 135.

Confirmations 1873-1902, 169-171.

Marriages 1858-1905, 201-204.

Funerals 1860-1910, 281-295.

Minutes of the church council 1864-1876, 333-340.

Receptions 1868, 352-353.

Also contains a history of the congregation at Coveville (source: Brüder-Blatt

1860), rear flap.

1 volume

binding broken, pages loose

Language: German until 1870, English

# 15.06. Donegal (Mount Joy)

# 28 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Donegal, Pennsylvania. 1743 - 1761 Contents:

Jacob Lischys Reformirten Predigers Declaration seines Sinnes an seine Reformirte Religions-Genossen in Pennsylvanien, (printed 1743) 8 p.

Fundamentals of the reformed congregation at Donegal.

Church order of the reformed congregation at Donegal.

Baptisms 1743-1761.

Funerals 1750-1760.

Declaration by the members of the reformed congregation about the use of their church, 1745.

Minutes of settling the accounts, 1745-1747.

Inventory of the books kept in the school house in Donegal for use of the visiting brothers from Bethlehem.

See the more extensive register, 1743-1815.

1 volume

Language: German

Edition: Transcription and translation: F. Edward Wright, Lancaster County, PA. Church REcords of the 18th Century, vol. 4. Westminster, Maryland 2000, 159-197.

# 29 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Donegal, Pennsylvania. 1743 - 1815 Contents:

Baptisms 1743-1815, 15-49.

Receptions into the congregation 1749-1797, 67-72.

Admissions to Holy Communion 1749-1789, 95-98.

Marriages 1761-1811, 111-114 (some of the weddings took place elsewhere).

Funerals 1751-1815, 119-157.

Receptions into the society 1755-1798, 183-187.

Catalog (list of 'families') 216- (note: also lists single people)

Also contains a map of the God's Acre, p. 120.

1 quart volume

upper corner of back cover is eaten away by moisture?, some damage from mold on the last pages.

Language: German

Edition:index by R. Milton Jeinnings (1971) (note: confused and incomplete). Better: Transcription and translation: F. Edward Wright, Lancaster County, PA. Church

REcords of the 18th Century, vol. 4. Westminster, Maryland 2000, 159-197.

## 15.07. Emmaus

37 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Emmaus, Pennsylvania. (1735) 1747 - 1806 Contents: Alphabetical index.

History of the beginnings of the congregation in Salisbury and list of ministers (1747-1988) 1-11.

"Familybook", Register of the members, with biographical information 1754-1792, 17-93.

Baptisms of infants (1735-) 1748-1802, 95-147.

Receptions into the congregation 1747-1806, 161-167.

Lists of participation in Holy Communion 1747-1803, 187-236.

Marriages 1758-1802, 267-270.

Funerals (1743-) 1747-1802, 278-304.

Admissions to Holy Communion 1747-1801, 305-308.

Receptions into the society 1754-1802, 315-320.

1 volume

'restored' by Clarence F. Jobst, Jan. 1968. ink corrosion

Language: German

Edition:transcription with index by Raymond E. Hollenbach, 1973: index 1

Church register of the Moravian congregation at Emmaus, Pennsylvania. 1801 - 1869 Contents: Alphabetical index.

"Familyregister", register of the members, with biographical information 1801-1839, 1-43.

Baptisms 1801-1869, 61-131.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1807-1869, 142-160, 276-326, 329-336.

Marriages 1802-1839, 161-170, 240-254, (note: entries on p. 44 are also to be found on p. 240).

Funerals 1801-1869, 171-218.

Confirmations 1854-1860, 272; 1861-1866, 328; 1868, 275; n.d. 327.

1 volume

some ink corrosion pp. 305-336.

Language: German until, English 1846-1853

Edition:transcription with index by Raymond E. Hollenbach, 1973: index 1.

# 15.08. Heidelberg

Church register of the Moravian congregation at Heidelberg, Pennsylvania. 1742 - 1825 Contents:

Family register, with biographical information, 1-60.

Baptisms 1742-1825, 99-134.

Marriages 1745-1806, 201-203.

Funerals 1745-1822, 221-241.

Chronicle of the Moravian congregation in Heidelberg Township, 1742-1817, 273. Also contains a map of the Godsacre with the locations of the graves (p. 220). Some (blank?) pages are missing. The register seems to be compiled from older sources around 1768.

1 volume

pages loose and worn, margins torn

Language: German

#### 15.09. Lancaster

64 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Lancaster, Pennsylvania, vol. 1.(1730) 1743 - 1821

Contents: Alphabetical index (at the end).

Extract from the register of the lutheran church in Lancaster of baptisms of chil-

dren whose parents later joined the Moravians and of marriages, 1730-1743.

Baptisms of infants 1743-1748, 1-48.

List of ministers who served the Lancaster congregation 1748-1865, 50.

Baptisms of infants 1748-1803, 51-(unpag.) (note: from here pages are not num-

bered, sections are listed in the order that they appear in the book:)

Baptisms of adults 1755-1815.

Marriages 1744-1821.

Baptisms of infants 1804-1821.

Funerals according to choir 1747-1758.

Funerals chronologically 1758 July - 1821.

Original is too fragile to be used. Use instead the photocopy (without the funerals)

or the typescript copy (index 3).

1 volume

paper brittle, pages loose, binding broken.

Language: German

Edition: Translation and transcription: index 3. (Without baptisms before 1821). For 18th century entries, see Robert L. Hess and F. Edward Wright, Church Records,

vol. 5 (2001).

65 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Lancaster, Pennsylvania, vol. 2.1821 June 8 - 1875

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1821-1874, 1-125.

Confirmations (and baptisms of adults) 1820-1841, 235-238; 1842-1869, 185-195;

1869-1875, 173-177.

Marriages 1821-1850, 201-234; 1850-1875. 352-387.

Funerals 1821-1875, 237-346.

Ordinations 1867-1869, 392.

Also contains short biography of Johann Heinrich Bachmann (born 1778) (back cover).

1 volume

paper brittle, pages loose, binding broken.

Language: German until 1829, English

Edition: Translation + transcription: index 3.

66 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Lancaster, Pennsylvania, vol. 3.1876 - 1919

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1876-1919, 1-43.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1876-1919, 161-169.

Confirmations 1876-1919, 173-187.

Receptions of new members 1876-1919, 193-202.

Marriages 1876-1885, 205-213; 1893-1919, 221-242.

Funerals 1876-1919, 253-328.

Removals and dismissals 1876-1918, 333-338.

1 volume

#### 15.10. Lebanon

# 77 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Quitopehille, later called Hebron, later called Lebanon, vol. I. (1733) 1748 - 1869

Contents:

Alphabetical index, 1-49 [incomplete]

"Familybook", Register of the members, with listing of the birth dates of the chil-

dren 1733-1790, 51-96.

Baptisms 1757-1869, 111-195.

Baptisms of adults and confirmations 1848-1869, 247-250.

Marriages 1751-1869, 281-301.

Funerals 1748-1847, 333-372; 1849-1869, 300-325.

With a map of the God's Acre, p. 334.

1 volume

binding broken, pages loose

Language: German until 1838, English Edition: Alphabetical index, nr. 4.

#### 170 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Lebanon, vol. II. 1870 - 1920

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of children 1870-1919, 1-52.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1872-1920, 109-111.

Confirmations 1870-1920, 117-128.

Receptions of new members 1870-1920, 133-140.

Marriages 1870-1920, 141-160.

Funerals 1870-1920, 173-219.

Removals and dismissals 1870-1919, 235-241.

1 volume

some pages are loose, front cover is loose

Language: English

#### 171 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Lebanon, vol. III. 1920 - 1949

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of children 1920-1949, 1-47.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1922-1949, 93-99.

Confirmations 1921-1948, 105-128, 1949, 143.

Receptions of new members 1920-1949, 129-136.

Marriages 1920-1949, 145-171.

Funerals 1921-1949, 177-225.

Removals and dismissals 1920-1921, 257.

Ordinations 1921-1944, 265.

1 volume

some pages are loose Language: English

## 172 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Lebanon, vol. IV.

1949 - 1992

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of children 1949-1992, 1-55.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1950-1992, 97-104.

Confirmations 1949-1992, 109-127.

Receptions of new members 1949-1992, 145-161.

Marriages 1949-1992, 169-202.

Funerals 1949-1986, 205-280; 1986-1992, 60-72.

Removals and dismissals 1973-1992, 281-287.

1 volume

## 15.11. Lititz

75 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Lititz, Pennsylvania. 1765 - 1800
Original in Lititz. Entries before 1765, see Warwick register.
transcription & translation

See transcription and translation: F. Edward Wright, Lancaster County, PA. Church Records of the 18th Century, vol. 4. Westminster, Maryland 2000, 44-158.

## 15.12. Muddy Creek

81 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Muddy Creek, Pennsylvania.(ca. 1740) - 1755 Contents:

The church register is organized as a "familybook", or register of the members by family, with listing of the dates of the baptisms of the children.

Box also contains several other papers, forming the records of the Muddy Creek Moravian congregation.

It is not clear when the register was started. It contains information about the families dating back to ca. 1700.

1 volume

Language: German

Edition:Translation: Franz Rink & Frederick S. Weiser, Records of the Muddy Creek

Moravian Congregation, in: Der Reggeboge, Dec. 1976, 5-15. See index 5.

#### 15.13. Nazareth

82 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Nazareth, Pennsylvania. 1742 - 1861 Contents of PART I (pages not numbered):

Baptisms of infants 1743-1748.

Marriages 1742, 1754-1755.

Funerals 1744-1755.

Contents of PART II:

Alphabetical index (also see old index in back).

Baptisms of infants 1755-1801, 1-61; 1802-1832, 125-180; 1833-1839, 77-96. (cont. in vol. II)

Receptions of new members 1755-1819, 63-76.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1785-1818, 245-260; 1818-1829, 263-

266; 1839-1846, 97-102; 1846-1856, 227-234; 1857-1860, 240-244.

Admissions to Holy Communion (confirmations) 1755-1839, 103-122.

Marriages 1754-1861, 183-225.

Ordinations ('Kirchengradus haben erlangt...') and receptions of acolytes: 1755-1837, 235-239.

Funerals on old God's Acre 1756-1762, 261-262.

Funerals on new God's Acre 1756-1823, 301-419; 1824-1838, 273-300; 1839, 267. (continued in vol. II).

This volume consists of two parts: I. a copy of the entries relating to Nazareth from the Bethlehem registers, compiled by Johann August Klingsohr (1793) 1742-1755; and II the Nazareth church register 1755-1861.

Until 1755 the entries for Nazareth were recorded in the Bethlehem register. The Jüngerkonferenz decided on Oct. 21, 1755, that separate registers for both Nazareth and Bethlehem were to be kept, starting with the new church year (Advent 1755) (BethCong 91).

1 volume

binding broken, some pages are loose

Language: German

#### 15.14. Newfoundland

83 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Hopedale (later Newfoundland),

Pennsylvania, vol. I.

1838 - 1871

Contents:

Baptisms 1838-1871.

Marriages 1842-1870.

Funerals 1839-1871.

Confirmations 1850-1871.

Pages are not numbered.

1 volume

Language: German

Church register of the Moravian congregation at Hopedale (later Newfoundland),
Pennsylvania, vol. II. 1870 - 1919

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1870-1918, 1-106.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1896-1918, 109-112.

Confirmations 1873-1916, 117-132; 1916-1918, 113-114.

Receptions of new members 1898-1918, 133-135.

Marriages 1871-1913, 141-172; 1914-1916, 140; 1916-1919, 137-139.

Funerals 1871-1913, 173-236; 1913-1919, 238-250 (note: entries are made in ran-

dom order).

Removals and dismissals 1878-1919, 237.

1 volume

binding broken, quires and pages are loose

### 15.15. Oley

# 100 Church register of the Moravia congregation at Oley, Pennsylvania. 1741 - 1768 Contents:

"Kurze historische Nachricht von dem Anfange der Erwekkung und Pflanzung des Gemeinleins in Oley', historical account of the beginnings of the congregation at Olev. 3-24.

"Familyregister", register of the members, with biographical information 1758, 25-47.

Marriage 1758, 120.

Receptions of new members 1741, 1756-1757, 133-135.

Baptisms of adults 1742-1743, 1757, 156-157.

List of unbaptized children 1739-1756, 160-161.

Baptisms of children of Moravian parents 1732-1766, 162-175.

Lists of participants in Holy Communion 1753-1768, 252-269.

Funerals 1746-1759, 420-422.

List of members of the society 1757, 440.

List of visitations 1759, 446.

Transferrals to other congregations 1743-1760, 451-453.

List of 'workers' (ministers) 1742-1763, 459.

Also contains a map of the God's Acre ('unvollkommner Abriß des Gottesackers'), 414.

The register was started in 1758 and included older information.

1 volume

Quires loose

Language: German

#### 15.16. Philadelphia

# 107 Church register of the (first) Moravian congregation at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (Philadelphia I). 1743 - 1822

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms 1743-1822, 1-172.

Funerals 1744-1822, 201-302.

Mariages 1743-1821, 305-328.

1 volume

binding was restored, but the first pages are still very fragile

Language: English

# 108 Church register of the (first) Moravian congregation at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (Philadelphia I). 1823 - 1855

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms 1823-1855, 1-93.

Marriages 1823-1855, 131-171.

Funerals 1823-1855, 213-262.

Confirmations and receptions of new members 1850-1855 (unnumbered pages in the back).

1 volume

some pages and quires are loose.

Language: English

# 109 Church register of the (first) Moravian congregation at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (Philadelphia I). 1856 - 1870

Contents: Alphabetical index 1-51.

Lists of communicants 1856-1876, 52-117; 1877, 324.

Baptisms 1856-1870, 121-153.

Receptions of new members 1856-1870, 181-193.

Funerals 1856-1870, 241-279.

Marriages 1856-1870, 301-323.

1 volume

Language: English

# 110 Church register of the (first) Moravian congregation at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (Philadelphia I). 1871 - 1907

Contents: Alphabetical index 1-23.

Baptisms of infants 1871-1907, 25-61.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1871-1907, 189-194.

Confirmations 1871-1907, 197-209.

Receptions of new members 1871-1903, 213-222; 1904-1907, 136-138.

Mariages 1871-1904, 223-268; 1904-1908, 120-127.

Funerals 1871-1889, 269-328; 1901-1906, 339-348; 1906-1907, 177-183 (note: no

entries were made from 1890 to 1900).

Removals and dismissals 1871-1907, 349-356.

1 volume

Language: English

# 111 Church register of the (first) Moravian congregation at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (Philadelphia I). 1908 - 1965

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1908-1958, 1-44; 1960-1963, 101.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1908-1961, 45-98.

Confirmations 1908-1963, 109-127.

Receptions of new members 1908-1963, 149-174.

Mariages 1908-1949, 177-216; 1949-1958, 103-106.

Funerals 1908-1939, 217-340; 1939-1944, 351-364; 1945-1957, 367-370; 1957-1965,

141-142.

Removals and dismissals 1908-1965, 341-347.

Ordinations 1907-1963, 36-366.

1 volume

some pages are loose Language: English

# 112 Church register of the Second Moravian congregation at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (Philadelphia II). 1865 - 1908

Contents: (note: pages are not numbered)

Baptisms of infants 1879-1908.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1865-76; 1877-1908.

Confirmations 1865-1908.

Receptions of new members 1866-1908.

Marriages 1881-1908.

Funerals 1880-1908.

Removals and dismissals 1879-1908.

Ordinations 1883, 1900.

1 volume

Language: English

# 113 Catalog and church register of the Third Moravian Church at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania (Philadelphia III).

1873 - 1929

Contents:

List of members 1873-1882, 1-7; 1883-1893, 70-73, 76-81; 1895-1904, 152-189, 196-197, 202-203 (according to choirs).

Baptisms of children 1879-1892, 10-29; 1893-1905, 119-145; 1905-1912, 242-255; 1912-1923, 190-198; 1923-1926, 90-91; 1926-1927, 88-89; 1927-1928, 74 (note: sin-

Baptisms of older children and adults 1894-1935, 111-113.

gle baptism 1927 among marriages on p. 75); 1928-1929, 45-44.

Marriages 1873-1895, 30-39; 1895-1898, 82-87; 1898-1901, 146-149; 1901-1908, 230-241; 1908-1920, 254-275 (note the entry for 1916 on the back cover); 1920-1923, 204-209; 1923-1924, 200-201; 1924, 199; 1924-1925, 92-93; 1925-1926, 96-97; 1926-1928, 186-189; 1928, 75; 1928, 94.

Funerals 1873-1881, 40-44; 1880-1886, 46-57; 1892-1896, 58-69; 1896-1902, 100-110; 1902-1914, 210-229; 1914-1917, 117-118; 1918-1924, 180-185; 1924-1926, 115-116; 1927-1928, 114; 1928, 156-157; 1928-1929, 162-163; 1929, 166-167.

Confirmations 1893-1894, 72-74.

Receptions of new members 1893-1894, 88-89.

Removals and dismissals 1892-1894, 94-95.

Diary 1886 Aug.-Oct., 150.

Previously called: Harrowgate.

This is the most chaotic register in the whole collection, with entries for confirmations, baptisms and marriages on one page (eg 74-75)!

1 volume

pages are loose Language: English

# 114 Catalog and church register of the Third Moravian Church at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania.

1929 - 1942

Contents:

Lists of members (catalog) 1929-1942, 1-16, 27-28.

Baptisms of infants 1930-1942, 17-26.

Funerals 1929-1938, 30-44; 1938-1942, 59-62.

Marriages 1929-1941, 45-58; 1941-1942, 63-65.

Baptisms of adults 1939, 16.

1 volume

Language: English

#### Church register of the Third Moravian Church at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, vol. 2.1942 - 1976

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1942-1976, 73-111.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1945-1976, 169-170.

Confirmations 1943-1975, 181-188.

Receptions of new members 1942-1970, 217-240; 1970-1976, 173-174.

Marriages 1942-1975, 241-266.

Funerals 1942-1976, 277-334.

Removals and dismissals 1943-1976, 353-359.

Ordination 1961, 361.

1 volume

Language: English

#### Church register of the Third Moravian Church at Philadelphia, Pennsylvania, vol. 3.1976 - 1992

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1976-1992, 1-12.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1983-1992, 113.

Confirmations 1977-1991, 125-127.

Receptions of new members 1977-1992, 145-150.

Marriages 1976-1992, 169-180.

Funerals 1976-1991, 205-233.

Removals and dismissals 1976-1992, 281-288.

Ordination 1977, 289.

1 volume

Language: English

#### 121 Church register of the Fifth Moravian Church in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

(Philadelphia V).

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1877-1902, 1-11.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1877-1899, 97-102.

Confirmations 1877-1899, 109-120; 1899, 207-209.

Receptions of new members 1877-1897, 121-132; 1897-1898, 195-200.

Marriages 1880-1898, 133-157.

Funerals 1878-1897, 173-184.

Removals and dismissals 1879-1898, 221-227.

Ordinations n.d., 1908, 233.

1 volume

Language: English

### 122 Church register of the Fifth Moravian Church in Philadelphia, Pennsylvania

#### (Philadelphia V).

1912 - 1957

1877 - 1902 (1908)

Contents:

Marriages 1912-1956, 2-13.

Funerals 1912-1957, 40-73.

Baptisms of infants 1912-1957, 100-121.

Confirmations 1913-1956, 220-233.

Receptions of new members 1912-1949, 270-279; 1950-1956, 290-291.

Removals and dismissals 1912-1955, 280-283.

From 1902 until 1912 no register was kept.

1 volume

some loose pages

Language: English

156 Church register of the German Moravian congregation in Philadelphia, from 1865 used for the Moravian congregation at Riverside, New Jersey. 1854 - 1865 See under Riverside, New Jersey.

## 15.17. Reading

Church register of the Moravian congregation at Reading, Pennsylvania. 1914 - 1951

Content: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1915-1950, 1-40.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1915-1949, 93-96.

Confirmations 1915-1949, 109-130.

Receptions of new members 1914-1950, 149-171.

Marriages 1915-1950, 173-207.

Funerals 1915-1951, 217-255.

Removals and dismissals 1915-1951, 293-296.

Ordinations 1919-1949, 301-302.

ORIGINAL NOT TO BE USED. USE MICROFILM

1 volume

paper is brittle. Language: English

## 15.18. Roemerville

115 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Roemerville, Pennsylvania.1945 - 1970

Contents: Alphabetical index 1-26.
Baptisms of infants 1945-1970, 27-30.
Confirmations 1945-1967, 73-75.
Receptions of new members 1945-1970, 87-90.
Marriages 1949-1963, 97-98.
Funerals 1946-1964, 115-116.
1 volume

#### 15.19. Schoeneck

#### Baptismal register of the Moravian congregation at Schoeneck.

1762 - 1785

Baptisms of children (incl. children of non-Moravian parents), 1762-1785.

It is not clear if this was an original register and that the entries were later trans-

ferred to a new, official register, or if this was a private, parallel register.

1 notebook

See church register, vol. I. (temp. no. 116).

Language: German

# 116 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Schoeneck, Pennsylvania, vol. I.1762 - 1796 Contents:

"Nachricht von dem ersten Anfang und den merkwürdigsten Vorfällen der Gemeine

in Schöneck", history of the Schoeneck congregation (1785), 1-10.

Baptisms of infants 1762-1790, 17-32; 1790-1796, 170-178.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1763-1790, 33-40; 1792-1796, 200-202.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1772-1795, 41-43.

Receptions into the society 1762-1795, 53-56.

Receptions into the congregation 1762-1795, 71-75.

Admissions to Holy Communion 1763-1795, 87-90.

Funerals (according to choir) 1763-1795, 101-119.

Memoirs of Louise Küchlin (Küchel) (1695-1767), 303-304; Johannes Rubel (1688-

1771), 305-308; Maria Barbara Michler (1729-1775), 309-310; Maria Christina

Colwer-Kühne (1717-1782), 316; Johann Jacob Steiner (1761-1783), 317; Barbara

Demuth (1713-1784), 318; Anna Catharina Bürstler (1706-1785), 319-320; Andreas

Heinrich Klein (1733-1786), 322-323; Joseph Demuth (1778-1788), 324.

IS WITH BOOKBINDER TO BE RESTORED, NOV. 9, 2006

1 quart volume

some pages are loose

Language: German

Edition: Transcript and translation by Charles M. Sandwick, The Early Schoeneck

Registers, 1978. Index 6.

## 117 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Schoeneck, Pennsylvania, vol. II.1792 - 1827 (1831) Contents:

Baptisms 1792-1818, 1-44; 1818-1823, 65-74; 1823-1825, 129-131; 1825-1827, 136-140.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1792-1800, 45-58; 1801-1807, 75-90;

1808-1825, 145-174; 1825-1827, 142-144; 1827, 141.

Marriages 1792-1821, 59-62; 1821-1831, 132-135.

Funerals 1792-1831, 91-128.

IS WITH BOOKBINDER TO BE RESTORED, NOV. 9, 2006. use microfilm or transcrip-

tion instead

1 volume

some pages and quires loose

Language: German

Edition: Transcript and translation (1762-1800) by Charles M. Sandwick, The Early

Schoeneck Registers, 1978. Index 6.

## 119 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Schoeneck, Pennsylvania, vol. III.1827 - 1867 Contents:

Baptisms of infants 1827-1858, 1-59; 1858-1867, 76-85

Marriages 1831-1866, 60-75; 80-

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1827-1829, 90-91; 1827-1839, 160-184; 1839-1867, 92-114 (note: parallel entries for 1827-1829 on pp. 90-91 and 160-161).

Funerals 1831-1867, 120-156.

1 volume rebound

Language: German

#### 120 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Schoeneck, Pennsylvania, vol. IV.1867 - 1890

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms 1868-1890, 1-56.

Marriages 1867-1883, 80-99; 1883-1890, 143-147.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1868-1890, 100-137.

Funerals 1868-1890, 160-217.

Confirmations 1888-1890, 218-219.

1 volume

Language: English (most funeral entries in German)

### 15.20. Tulpehocken

# 126 Church register of the Evangelical Lutheran ('Evangelisch Lutherischen Gemein') Congregation in Tulpehocken. (1722-) 1742 - 1747

Contents:

'Historischer Bericht von der Evangelisch Lutherischen Gemein in Tulpehocken ihren Anfang und Fortgang', history of the evangelical lutheran congregation in Tulpehocken, 1723-1747, 1-13.

Account of the celebrations of Holy Communion 1742-1747.

Baptisms of children according to families 1722-1747.

Baptisms of children (chronologically) 1743-1747.

Funerals 1744-1747.

Marriages 1742-1743.

This 'lutheran' congregation was in close connection and under supervision of the Moravian Church in Bethlehem.

With photocopy in box.

1 volume

some quires are loose

Language: German

## 15.21. Warwick

76 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Warwick, Pennsylvania. 1744 - 1794 Original in Lititz.

transcription & translation

Edition: See transcription and translation: F. Edward Wright, Lancaster County, PA. Church Records of the 18th Century, vol. 4. Westminster, Maryland 2000, 1-43.

## 15.22. Yardley

8 Church register and diary of the Big Oak Moravian Church in Yardley, Pennsylvania.1953 - 1966

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1953-1966, 1-20.

Baptisms of adults 1962-1965, 25.

Burials 1954-1966, 27-34.

Confirmations 1954-1966, 35-39.

Receptions of members 1954-1966, 41-55.

Marriages 1957-1966, 57-60.

Removals and dismissals n.d.-1965, 61-65.

Diary 1953-1961.

1 volume

#### 15.23. York

#### 149 Church register of the (first) Moravian congregation at York, Pennsylvania, vol. I & II.1751 - 1847

Contents: [in front of original register a 19th century quire was inserted, 1-26]

Text of the document that was placed in the foundation stone of the Gemeinhaus in York, 1755, 5-10.

Alphabetical index for vol. I, 15-23; vol. II 464-482.

"Familyregister", register of the members, with biographical information 27-119.

Marriages 1758-1812, 123-130; 1808-1843, 379-409; 1844-1847, 449-454.

Baptisms 1751-1800, 135-192; 1800-1807, 228-245; 1808-1844, 208-376; 1845-1847, 457-463.

Funerals 1752-1808, 195-225; 1808-1847, 412-443.

Receptions into the society or into the congregation 1754-1815, 248-252.

When vol. I and II were bound together, a new, continuous page numbering was inserted. In this description the new page numbers are followed. The original vol. I 1754-1815, 27-253; vol. II 1808-1847, 208-484.

1 volume

19th century repairs

Language: German

Edition: Alphabetical index, index 8.

#### 150 Church register of the (first) Moravian congregation at York, Pennsylvania, vol. III.1847 - 1899

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms 1847-1900, 1-81.

Baptisms of children of non-Moravian parents 1848-1870, 101-129.

Confirmations 1848-1899, 161-178.

Ordinations 1867-1887, 184-187.

Receptions of new members 1879-1899, 189-194.

Marriages 1848-1899, 201-245.

Funerals 1847-1899, 301-365.

This volume was started on Sept. 1, 1847.

1 volume

front board and first quires loose.

Language: German until April 1852, English

#### 154 Church register of the Olivet Moravian Church in Spring Garden Township, near York, Pennsylvania. 1927 - 1962

Contents: Alphabetical index 1-33.

Baptisms of infants 1927-1962, 37-67.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1927-1961, 140-143.

Confirmations 1927-1962, 150-163.

Receptions of new members 1927-1961, 180-194.

Marriages 1928-1962, 195-202.

Funerals 1928-1962, 240-254.

Removals and dismissals 1940-1956, 285.

1 volume

Language: English

# 151 Church register of the Bethany and Princess Street Union Mission congregations at York, Pennsylvania. 1887 - 1902

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms 1887-1902, 1-65.

Confirmations 1887-1902, 161-190.

Receptions of new members 1887-1902, 201-217.

Marriages 1887-1902, 221-234.

Funerals 1887-1902, 301-328.

Ordination 1887, 411.

This is a combined register of the mission congregations that met in the Bethany Chapel and in the Princess Street Chapel.

1 volume

Paper highly acidic. Paper brittle, some pages loose and torn

Language: English

## 152 Church register of the Bethany or Second Moravian Church at York, Pennsylvania, vol. I. 1902 - 1939

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1902-1923, 1-92; 1924-1929, 165-176; 1929-1936, 98-108; 1936-1939, 148-143 [in that order].

Baptisms of older children and adults 1903-1936, 93-96.

Confirmations 1903-1939, 109-135.

Receptions of new members 1902-1939, 149-160.

Marriages 1902-1926, 177-216; 1926-1939, 275-286; 1939, 304.

Funerals 1902-1935, 217-274; 1935-1939, 292-287 [in that order]; 1939, 312.

Removals and dismissals 1902-1939, 293-295.

Ordinations 1902, 1928, 305.

1 volume

some pages are loose

Language: English

# 153 Church register of the Bethany or Second Moravian Church at York, Pennsylvania, vol. II. 1940 - 1964

Contents: Alphabetical index 1-49.

Baptisms of infants 1940-1964, 50-82.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1941-1963, 232-235.

Confirmations 1940-1963, 244-257.

Receptions of new members 1940-1963, 286-296.

Marriages 1940-1961, 307-323.

Funerals 1940-1962, 388-423.

Removals and dismissals 1941, 484.

1 volume

## 16. Rhode Island

## 16.01. Newport

92 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Newport, Rhode Island. 1756 - 1838 Contents:

"Of the Beginning of the Brethren's Congregation in Newport", 4-8.

Marriages 1769-1838, 8-14.

Baptisms of children 1756-1810, 15-18; 1810-1833, 53-58.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1758-1834, 19-22.

Funerals 1757-1834, 27-32.

Receptions into the congregation 1787-1817, 33-34.

Admissions to Holy Communion 1788-1834, 45-46.

1 volume

## 17. Wisconsin

## 17.01. Ephraim

34 Church register of Ephraim Moravian Church, Wisconsin.

1850 - 1870

Contents:

Baptisms ('Döbte') 1850-1870, 1-50, 75-100, 120-[unpag.]

Marriages ('Aegteviede') 1850-1870, 51-60.

Funerals ('Döde') 1850-1870, 101-104.

1 volume

Pages loose, binding broken.

Language: Norwegian

### 17.02. Greenbay

## 51 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Fort Howard, later Greenbay

(Westside), Wisconsin, vol. 1.

(1867) 1870 - 1897

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1870-1897, 1-64v.

Confirmations 1870-1882, 65-72.

Receptions of new members 1870-1880, 77-79.

Marriages 1870-1897, 81-100p.

Funerals 1870-1896, 101-136.

Removals and dismissals 1867-1881, 145-149.

Entries before 1870 in church register of Ephraim.

1 volume

Language: English, Norwegian 1885-1896 (some German)

#### 52 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Fort Howard, later Greenbay

1897 June - 1922

(Westside), Wisconsin, vol. 2. Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1897-1922, 1-72.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1901-1921, 73-74.

Confirmations 1897-1922, 101-118.

Receptions of new members 1897-1922, 185-197.

Marriages 1897-1922, 273-304.

Funerals 1897-1922, 321-391

Removals and dismissals 1917-1922, 413-415.

1 volume

Language: English

# Church register of the Moravian congregation at Fort Howard, later Greenbay (Westside), Wisconsin, vol. 3.

1923 - 1956

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1923-1956, 1-81.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1923-1955, 93-97.

Confirmations 1923-1956, 109-127.

Receptions of new members 1923-1956, 149-165.

Marriages 1923-1956, 173-216.

Funerals 1923-1950, 217-292; 1950-1952, 100-108; 1952-1953, 86-92; 1954-1956,

138-148.

Removals and dismissals 1923-1945, 293-294.

Ordinations 1924-1953, 301-302.

Also contains act of incorporation, 1914, p. 171.

1 volume

Language: English Edition:Index Nr. 2

#### 17.03. Lake Mills

58 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Lake Mills, Wisconsin, vol. 1.1856 - 1870

Contents:

Baptisms 1856-1870, 2-41.

Confirmations 1859-1870, 67-72.

Marriages 1856-1870, 76-87.

Funerals 1857-1868, 100-101.

1 volume

pages very brittle, pages loose

Language: German

59 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Lake Mills, Wisconsin, vol. 2.1870 Sept. - 1879

Contents:

Baptisms of infants 1870-1879.

Confirmations 1871-1879.

Receptions of new members 1871-1877, 1878 (after marriages).

Marriages 1870-1878.

Funerals 1870-1879.

Catalogs 1875-1878.

Removals and dismissals 1872-1874.

1 volume

binding is broken, some pages looese

Language: German

60 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Lake Mills, Wisconsin, vol. 3.1879 June - 1899

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1879-1899, 1-107.

Baptism of an older child 1893, 137.

Confirmations 1880-1896, 157-176; 1896-1899, 191-196.

Receptions of new members 1880-1899, 177-187.

Marriages 1879-899, 197-237.

Funerals 1879-1899, 245-291.

Removal 1884, 317.

1 volume

many pages are loose

Language: German

61 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Lake Mills, Wisconsin, vol. 4.1900 - 1943

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1900-1943, 1-128.

Baptism of older children and adults 1903-1943, 217-220.

Confirmations 1900-1943, 261-320.

Receptions of new members 1900-1943, 345-386.

Marriages 1900-1938, 397-476; 1938-1943, 390-394.

Funerals 1900-1932, 477-624; 1932-1940, 632-672; 1940-1942, 675-684; 1942-1943,

222-228.

Removals and dismissals 1900-1929, 625-627.

Ordinations 1906-1943, 673-674.

1 volume

binding is broken, pages are loose

Language: German until 1928, English

62 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Lake Mills, Wisconsin, vol. 5.1944 - 1956

Contents: Alphabetical index 1-72.

Baptisms of infants 1944-1956, 1-32.

Baptism of older children and adults 1944-1956, 97.

Confirmations 1944-1956, 109-120.

Receptions of new members 1944-1956, 145-151.

Marriages 1944-1955, 169-181.

Funerals 1944-1956, 205-238.

Removals and dismissals 1946-1956, 281-284, 289-290.

1 volume

Language: English

#### 63 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Lake Mills, Wisconsin, vol. 6.1956 - 1977

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1956-1977, 1-43.

Baptism of older children and adults 1958-1977, 97.

Confirmations 1957-1977, 109-119.

Receptions of new members 1956-1977, 145-150.

Marriages 1956-1974, 169-202; 1974-1977, 135-144; 1977, 50.

Funerals 1956-1977, 203-266.

Removals and dismissals 1956-1977, 279-284.

Ordinations 1961-1973, 287-288.

1 volume

## 17.04. Sturgeon Bay

125 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Sturgeon Bay, Wisconsin. 1873 - 1892

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1873-1892, 3-116b.

Baptisms of adults 1880, 111; 1892, 117.

Confirmations 1873-1892, 119-134a.

Receptions of new members 1873-1874, 135.

Marriages 1875-1892, 143-168.

Funerals 1873-1892, 175-207.

1 volume

binding is broken

Language: Swedish until 1889/90

## 17.05. Town Portland

42 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Gerah, Wisconsin. 1873 - 1922 Contents:

Catalog 1-64.

Baptisms of infants 1873-1922, 81-105.

Confirmations 1875-1918, 131-138.

Marriages 1874-1913, 161-172.

Funerals 1873-1920, 201-213.

Receptions of new members 1873-1890, 255-256.

Account of receipts and expenditures for the construction of a church 1874-1875, 271-274.

Memorabilia (annual reports) and statistics 1873-1887, 301-310.

Diary 1888-1890, 311-316. (continuation in diary of Mamre).

Also contains a draft for the rules of the Godsacre (loose in book).

1 volume

Language: German

## 17.06. Veedum

Diary and church register of the Moravian Community Church at Veedum, Wisconsin.1918 - 1960 Contents:

Account of the beginnings of the congregation 1-2.

Diary 1917-1926, 3-32.

Receptions of new members 1952-1959, 34-37.

List of services held 1917-1939, 48-96.

Funerals 1919-1960, 120-142.

Baptisms 1918-1960, 150-164.

Marriages 1918-1959, 174-187.

Confirmations 1945-1959, 196-198.

1 volume

#### 17.07. Watertown

69 Church register of the Mamre Moravian Church at Watertown, Wisconsin, vol. 1.1870 - 1888

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1871-1886, 1-33.

Baptisms of older children and adults 1876, 56.

Confirmations 1872-1888, 60-67.

Receptions of new members 1875-1882, 73-75.

Marriages 1870-1887, 77-96b. (note: the sequence of the entries is not chronological!).

Funerals 1871-1885, 97-108.

Removals and dismissals 1872-1881, 141.

Several pages were removed from this volume.

1 volume

Language: German

70 Church register of the Mamre Moravian Church at Watertown, Wisconsin, vol. 2.1887 - 1951

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of infants 1887-1950, 1-79.

Baptisms of adults 1941, 98, 103 (note: both entries record the same baptism).

Confirmations 1889-1921, 110-125c; 1921-1946, 225-231.

Receptions of new members 1890-1948, 126-135.

Marriages 1887-1951, 138-171.

Funerals 1887-1948, 174-221.

Removals and dismissals 1916-1944, 222.

Ordination 1947, 233.

1 volume

Language: German until 1915, English

141 Church register of the Moravian congregation at Watertown, Wisconsin. 1854 - 1879

Contents:

Baptisms 1854-1879, 2-59.

Confirmations 1866-1877, 100-110.

Funerals 1866-1879, 200-204.

Marriages 1866-1874, 250-319; 1874, 218-219; 1874-1879, 206-217.

1 volume

Language: German

## 18. Canada

## 18.01. Toronto

Church register of New Dawn Moravian Church at Toronto, Ontario.

Contents: Alphabetical index.

Baptisms of children 1984-1993, 1-24.

Confirmations 1984-1993, 61-71.

Receptions of members 1983-1993, 81-112.

Marriages 1984-1991, 121-131.

Removals and dismissals 1984, 201.

1 volume

## 19. Personal Registers

Personal register of official acts performed by Rev. Earl R. Shay, with original marriage certificates and death licenses. 1943 - 1972

Content: Elizabeth, N.J. 1944-1949; Bethel, Alaska, 1949-1954; Hope, Indiana 1954-1964; Indianapolis 1965-1968; Pennsylvania 1969-1972

1 volume